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Tawuniya... 30 years of achievements
In 2016, Tawuniya celebrated 30 years of
operations. The company was established
on January 18th, 1986, and was the first
insurance company licensed to operate in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia following the
issuance of its commercial registration. With
time, Tawuniya became the Saudi insurance
market leader, playing a major role in the
growth of the “Cooperative Insurance” leading
to the development of Cooperative Insurance
Regulations in the Kingdom.

Tawuniya officially kicked off its operations in 1987 with insurance premuims
amounting to SAR 19 million. During the first few years, the company focused
on strengthening its internal structure, planning, upgrading its systems, and
expanding its branches’ network. The efforts invested in the beginning yielded
steady business growth over the 30 years. Tawuniya became the leader of
Saudi insurance market with more than SAR 8 billion portfolio in 2016 and
a long record of awards, rankings and distinguished ratings, all asserting the
company’s leadership.

From START... to TOP!

- The Highest Credit Rating, by Standard & Poor’s.
- FORBES’ Top 100 Arabian Companies.
- Insurance Company of the Year- KSA, by Arabian Business magazine.
- The Best Insurance Company in KSA amongst the Top 100 Saudi Companies List.
- Trends magazine’s TOP 100 CEOs in the GCC.
- Most Creative & Innovative Saudi Insurance Company, by International Finance Magazine.
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The Corporate Identity Evolution

Tawuniya started as a national company owned by governmental bodies and
funds under the name “The National Company for Cooperative Insurance”.
Yet, after the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law was issued, the
company sold part of its shares through public offering and became a JointStock Company in 2005, adopting the name “The Company for Cooperative
Insurance”. In line with this major change in its legal status and in response to
growing market trends, Tawuniya launched its new identity in 2007.

The Chairman’s Statement
Dear Shareholders,

H.E. Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Chairman

On the occasion of the Tawuniya’s
thirtieth annual report release, I am
pleased to congratulate you with another
year of strong performance and distinctive
financial results achieved by the company
during 2016, which is reflected directly
on shareholder’s equity and earnings
per share. And thirty years after its
establishment in January 1986, the
company succeeded to affirm, through
the figures and results, its competency to
occupy the leading position of the Saudi
Arabian insurance market.
The financial results for the year 2016
indicate that Tawuniya was ranked first
in the Saudi insurance market in terms of
the gross written premiums of SR 8,055
million, shareholders income before zakat
of SR 801 million, earnings per share of SR
7.33, operating surplus of SR 676 million,
the return on investment of SR 202
million, shareholders’ equity of SR 2,928
million, total assets of SR 13,476 million
and retained earnings of SR 999 million.

The financial
results for the year
2016, indicate
that Tawuniya was
ranked first in the
Saudi Insurance
Market. This
distinction has been
confirmed through
the awards and
rankings obtained
by the company

This distinction has been confirmed
through the awards and rankings obtained
by Tawuniya during 2016, where the
company maintained the best Standard
& Poor’s credit rating in the insurance
market. Tawuniya also won the insurance
company of the year award from the
Arabian Business Magazine, and the most
creative and innovative Saudi insurance
company award from the Financial
International Magazine. Tawuniya also
presided the insurance sector in the top
100 Saudi companies list issued by Aleqtisadiah Newspaper, and was selected
by Forbes Magazine among the 100
leading companies in the Arab world.
Based on these strong results, the Board of
Directors of Tawuniya has recommended a
dividend of SR 500 million to shareholders
by SR 5 per share, equivalent to 50% of
the capital value against SR 100 million
was distributed to shareholders for the
previous year. The BOD also recommended
a capital increase to SR 1,250 million by
granting one quarter of share as a bonus
for each share, and this is in furtherance
of the company’s financial status and to
enhance its financial capacity.

This impressive performance achieved
by Tawuniya in 2016, affirms that the
company owns the core elements and
strong infrastructure that it is being built
upon year after year to achieve more
success and growth. And despite the
challenges faced by the Saudi Arabian
insurance market as a result of the
economic conditions, it has become
clear to all that Tawuniya is also ready
to cut more confident steps towards the
next stage, backed by human resources
characterized by the talent and dedication
led by a conscious team of the executive
management that have the vision and
experience, and the Board of Directors
that lays the strategic goals and sets
the priorities in line with the company’s
ambition and capabilities.
We are aware that with the Saudi
Arabian insurance market heading
towards maturity that is witnessing more
legislative regulation, competition will be
stronger, just as the Saudi Arabian vision
2030 and the National Transformation
Program 2020 will open up broad
prospects of expansion in the various
economic sectors. So year 2016 witnessed
revisions for the company’s strategy and
its related action plans for the next five
years. These revisions will contribute
to the development of practices to the
level of the best and to highlighting and
exploiting the available opportunities by
using the available large capabilities in the
company. They will also support the various
operating segments and will develop skills
and expansion of the technology use and
will encourage creativity and innovation in
order to provide efficient and competent
services and initiatives that will enable
Tawuniya to raise the level of customer
service and attract more key accounts to
the company’s portfolio and increasing
smart insurance practices. The Risk
Committee created by Tawuniya in 2016
will update the risk profiles in order to
be more homogeneous, on the insurance
portfolio or investment portfolio which
has witnessed a restructuring of some
investments during year 2016 to avoid a
sharp drop in the market.
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In 2016, Tawuniya implemented plans that include a lot of
programs and initiatives to improve the work environment
and develop the internal culture in order to raise the level of
awareness toward the company’s goals, risks and challenges and
upgrading the knowledge of the staff. The company focused on
issues related to corporate governance, social responsibility and
structural adjustments as important matters complementary to
the operational processes.

In the Board of Directors we support the company’s executive
management in stressing on the importance of developing
processes that raise the quality of services and the variety of
programs in all business areas, while continuing to this trend,
which is one of the key factors for future growth, and giving
attention, at the same time, to develop the skills of staff and to
support the Saudization ratio which amounted to more than 79%
by the end of 2016.

Tawuniya has also issued during 2016 new corporate governance
guidelines that comply with the Insurance Companies Governance
Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority, thus,
the company achieved commitment to adhere to the provisions
of these regulations as well as the Corporate Governance
Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority. There is no
doubt that Tawuniya success to avoid any financial penalties
imposed by the regulatory authorities during 2016 affirms that
the company is one of the best Saudi companies as regards
regulatory compliance, as well as the Shariyah commitment that
is confirmed by the Shariyah scholar report issued in 2016, which
refers to the Tawuniya’s commitment to Shariyah provisions in its
insurance and investment transactions.

On this occasion, I would like to take this opportunity to express
my thanks and appreciation to all shareholders and esteemed
clients for the precious confidence they attach to the company.
I also extend my sincere appreciation for the Tawuniya’s
management and staff who make a difference with their
outstanding performance during the year 2016. I am confident
they will continue their efforts to build a solid foundation for
the company, supporting its growth in the future and raising the
shareholders’ equity value.
Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
The Chairman

After the establishment of Tawuniya, the Saudi society realized the
importance of having a national insurance company that is fully qualified to
offer high-quality insurance services. For many years, Tawuniya protected the
country’s biggest infrastructure projects across all sectors and accompanied
KSA’s progress journey, one phase at a time. Today, the company is a pioneer
in providing comprehensive insurance plans to several economic sectors
including Telecom, Civil Aviation and Banking.

A Nation’s Journey

The Board of Directors (BOD)

H.E. Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Chairman

Mr. Waleed A. Al-Eisa
Vice - Chairman

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki
Director

Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Alzaid
Director
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Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez
Director

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin
Director

Mr. Homoud A. Altwaigery
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser
Director

The insurance market in Saudi Arabia did not attract many Saudi professionals
at first. Then, 16 young Saudi men joined Tawuniya in 1987 and paved the way
for nationals to work in this vital field. In 1990, a Saudi insurance professional
working at Tawuniya became the first designated fellowship degree holder
from the Chartered Insurance Institute in the UK. Since then, the company
became a hub for distinguished Saudi insurance professionals whose number
has grown to 1,033 male and female employees, which is almost equivalent
to 79% of Tawuniya’s total workforce.

Moving towards Saudization

The 2016 Board of
Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors (BOD) of the
Company for Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya) has the pleasure of presenting
our shareholders with the 30th Annual
Report, comprising of the company’s most
significant plans, decisions, operational
activities, financial results and the
regulatory-based disclosures. The audited
financial statements and their notes for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016
accompany the report.
1.

2. Significant Plans and Decisions
during 2016

sector.

••

Approval of the formation of the
Risk Management Committee and
adoption of the rules for selecting
its members, issuance of rules
for selecting the members of the
Nomination
and
Remuneration
Committee, Executive Committee and
Investment Committee in accordance
with the requirements set forth in
the Insurance Corporate Governance
Regulations issued by SAMA.

••

Approval of the company’s strategy
for social responsibility and pertaining
policies to organize the initiatives
aiming at enhancing the identity
of the company and reflecting its
integral values through the messages
addressed and highlighting the highvalue community programs.

••

Approval of the Audit Committee
policy and procedures and the
adoption of financial statements
publishing policy.

••

Creation of a new field and telesales
department responsible for the small
and medium enterprises (SMEs) and
launching of insurance products
dedicated to this vital economic
sector.

••

In line with the new strategic trends
of the company, restructuring of
Finance Department has been
achieved, substantial and material
modifications were implemented in
order to conduct a comprehensive
development to the Department
so as to realize the separation
of responsibilities and tasks in a
balanced manner. This also aims at
improving the various operations and
transactions and accelerating their
performance to ensure the optimal
application of the approved financial
policies and procedures.

••

In the framework of the company’s
keenness to support the continued
development of the company’s results
and enhancement of the level of
customer satisfaction, affiliation of

Thirty years of accomplishments

The Company for Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya) is a Saudi joint stock company
established in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia by Royal
Decree number M/5. It was registered on
January 18, 1986 (corresponding to 8th
Jumada Alawal, 1406H) under the CR No.
1010061695. With the advent of 2016,
Tawuniya completed thirty years since
its inception, during which it was able to
occupy the leading position in the Saudi
insurance sector. It succeeded in creating
packages of various insurance products
and services that allowed it to acquire
the entire confidence of its customers,
shareholders and all other stakeholders.
The company continues its successful
march despite the challenges facing the
Saudi insurance sector, and has achieved
excellent results during 2016 to be added
to its track record.

With the advent
of 2016, Tawuniya
completed 30 years,
during which it was
able to occupy the
leading position in
the Saudi Insurance

Therefore, the Board approved the
final version of the policy and thereby
it was approved by the General
Assembly held on 20/10/2016.

••

Review of the company’s strategy
project and related business and
restructuring plans for the next five
years, the approval of the business
plan and adoption of year 2017
budget.

••

Issuance of the company’s corporate
governance policy to comply with
the Insurance Corporate Governance
Regulations issued by the Saudi
Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA).
The Board directed the company’s
management to form an internal
committee to study and prepare the
company’s corporate governance
policy. This policy was reviewed by
the competent Board committees.
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the Customer Service Department has been transferred from
the marketing and sales sector to operations sector.
3- Evaluation of the company’s strategy and its position in
financial terms:

••

Enhance products’ offerings and cross-selling through
competitive product pricing.

••

Expanding on technical and analytical capabilities through
data management and analytical tools.

••

Tawuniya has successfully managed its strategy that has proven
its effectiveness in achieving the set objectives despite the current
economic conditions, which is reflected positively on the financial
position of the company as follows:

Enhance our clients’ experience through agile and fast
customer service.

••

Upgrade sales force effectiveness by improving sales
processes and distribution channels.

••

Realizing the targeted profitability by practical focusing on
the profitable market segments.

6- Assement of Surrounding Risks and How to Manage

••

Reducing the operating costs and optimizing the Company’s
expenditure.

••

Improving the efficiency of investment portfolio.

••

Maintaining healthy renewal ratio levels.

4- Distinctive achievements and ratings in 2016:
••

The Company realized record profits amounting to SR 800.9
million before zakat allocation.

••

Reduction of sovereign credit rating of the country is adversely
reflected on the Standard & Poor’s (S&P) rating, which has
assigned Tawuniya an ‘A-’ rating with “stable’, being the
highest rating scored by a Saudi Insurance company in 2016.

••

Tawuniya won the Saudi insurance company of the year
award by the Arabian Business magazine.

••

Tawuniya is selected amongst the Top 100 leading companies
in the Arab world issued by Forbes magazine.

••

Tawuniya topped the Saudi insurance sector in the list of Top
100 Saudi Companies issued by Aleqisadiah newspaper.

••

The CEO of Tawuniya was chosen among the top 100 CEO in the
GCC countries pursuant to the list of “Trends” magazine.

5- Future Prospects
Saudi Arabia is nowadays witnessing an important economic
transformations imposed by economic conditions resulting from
lower oil prices and its direct impact on the state budget. In 2016,
the Government of the Kingdom launched “Saudi Vision 2030”,
design a roadmap to achieve that vision through the National
Transformation Program 2020.
These changes affected the overall Saudi economic sectors,
including the insurance sector. However, the future prospects
of the company business are still highly optimistic based on the
following indicators:
••

Maintain the leading insurance financial rating by Standard &
Poor’s in 2017.

••

Target profitable growth and sustain market leadership
position.

••

Expand partnerships to support the company’s growth and
penetration in profitable market segments.

a) Insurance Risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an
insured event might occur including the uncertainty of the
amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk
the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount
of insurance liabilities. However, this is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims; actual benefits paid
being greater than originally estimated and subsequent
development of long-term claims.
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk
of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board
by change in any subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected
outcomes. The variability of risks is also improved by careful
selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and
guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.
b) Reinsurance Risk
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large
claims, the Company, in the normal course of business,
enters into agreements with major reinsurers for reinsurance
purposes. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from
reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of
credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or
economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed
on treaty and facultative basis with retention limits varying
by product lines. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for
ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in
the statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.
Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and
guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and
Reinsurance Committee. The criteria may be summarized
as minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating
agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent,
reputation of particular reinsurance companies and existing
or past business relationship with the reinsurer.
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technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s
operations either internally within the Company or externally
at the Company’s service providers, and from external
factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as
those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of investment management
behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s
activities. The Company’s objective is to manage operational
risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage
to its reputation with achieving its investment objective of
generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility
for the development and implementation of controls over
operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This
responsibility encompasses the controls in the following
areas:

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and
technical expertise as well as historical performance of the
reinsurers, wherever applicable, are thoroughly reviewed
by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements of the
Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee
before approving them for exchange of reinsurance business.
Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from
its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company
remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured
to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations
under the reinsurance agreements.
c) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument
may fluctuate as a result of changes in market, commission
rates or the market price of securities or the instrument,
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply
and demand for securities and liquidity in the market. Market
risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission
rate risk and other price risk.
The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the overall
market risk exposure is maintained at prudent levels and is
consistent with the available capital. While the Board gives
a strategic direction and goals, risk management function
related to market risk is mainly the responsibility of Investment
Committee team. The team prepares forecasts showing the
effects of various possible changes in market conditions related
to risk exposures. This risk is being mitigated through the proper
selection of securities. Company maintains diversified portfolio
and performs regular monitoring of developments in related
markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock and
sukuk market movements are monitored, including analysis of
the operational and financial performance of investees.

••

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between
various functions, roles and responsibilities;

••

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of
transactions;

••

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

••

Documentation of controls and procedures;

••

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational
risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to
address the risks identified;

••

Ethical and business standards; and

••

Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

••

Senior Management ensures that the Company’s staff has
adequate training and experience and fosters effective
communication related to operational risk management.

g) Competition in the market putting pressure on prices
Considering the number of companies in the insurance
market, still the pricing is one of the vital factors for capturing
the market and products need to be competitively priced,
with tight monitoring for loss ratios.

d) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
might fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial instruments
held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure
to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the
statement of financial position. Concentration of credit risk
exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit
exposure. The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments
is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with
diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any
significant concentrations of credit risk.
e) Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet obligations and
commitments associated with financial liabilities. The
Company has a proper cash management system, where daily
cash collections and payments are strictly monitored and
reconciled on regular basis. The Company manages liquidity
risk by maintaining maturities of financial assets and financial
liabilities and investing in liquid financial assets.
f)

Operational Risk:
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising
from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,

h) Maintaining the operating standards in the light of business
expansion
When the business expands, it warrants more delegation of
authorities, additional infrastructure etc. In this situation,
it is a challenge to maintain the operating standards to
differentiate in the market and to retain the clientele.
i)

Changed risk profile of the Company’s business portfolio
In line with the Saudi insurance industry practice in
general, medical insurance represents the largest share
in the company’s portfolio due to the implementation of
compulsory medical insurance regulations, thereby the
insurance portfolio skewed towards Medical line of business.
As such a small change in the portfolio may have impact on
the Company’s performance.

j) Flexibility of the Company’s processes and systems
The infrastructure & the processes adopted need to cope
up with the demands of the business growth and changing
market practices, in order to avoid any problems that might
face business. Therefore, the Company is keen to render the
processes and systems flexible enough to handle the business
growth, changing market practices and complex policy
structures.
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also the investments. However, the Company monitors these
situations closely and designs the appropriate precaution
policies.

k) Risk Concentration
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks
primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in
medical segment. The Company also monitors concentration
of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same
geographical location. For flood or earthquake risk, a complete
city is classified as a single location. For fire and property risk a
particular building and neighboring buildings, which could be
affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single
location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in
a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while
assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the
concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative
insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce
such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company. Since
the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia, hence, all the
insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.
l)

r)

This may put the Company at the disadvantageous position
due to additional costs required to incur to meet the
requirements.
s) Services outage due to potential attacks
The availability of systems and services may be at risk due
cyber-attacks, virus and malware attacks. To avoid such
exposures, the Company continuously upgrades the effective
protective systems that ensure deterring such attacks and
maintain business continuity and unceasing provision of
service.
In addition to the above, Tawuniya has well established Risk
Committee and Risk Management Processes to handle the
following:

High staff turnover
Besides increasing the cost of recruitment & training, it will
adversely affect the operational efficiency and in turn the
customer service, as the new employees take some time
to understand the processes and handle the functions in
the desired manner. The Company, implements the sound
initiatives that assist in the improvement of work environment
and enhancement of employees’ loyalty and thereby reducing
the ratios of staff turnover.

m) Leakage of sensitive information
Leakage of business sensitive information may put the
Company in disadvantageous position and may lead to loss of
business. The Company designed the policies and procedures
which clearly define the sensitive information and how to
handle to ensure information protection and prevent such
leakage.
n) Frauds and Financial crimes
Fraud or abuse in financial operations, claims operations and
sales affect the Company’s performance and reputation.
Therefore, the Company designed a set of appropriate policies
and procedures to mitigate the suspicious cases and detect
fraudulent activities.
o) Breaching of laws and regulations
Breaching the regulations may impose financial penalties
which may in turn affect the company’s reputation. Thus,
the Company endeavours to update its policies and by-laws
and implement its transactions in line with the rules and
regulations issued by the regulatory authorities.
p) Slowdown in Global/Local economies
Investment returns are affected by economic conditions and
the difficulties or recessions that might occur. Therefore, the
Company applies balanced investment policy through which
the assets are allocated to diversified investment channels
at perfect mechanisms that ensure reducing the impact of
economic slowdown on the Company’s return on investment.
q) Geopolitical situations impacting the Company’s insurance
contracts and investments
Geopolitical situations may affect the insurance contracts
more particularly of P&C lines, reinsurance arrangements and

Changing Regulatory, Legal, and Behavioural environment
affecting the Company performance

••

Monitoring of regulatory solvency position and capital
position as per rating agency capital model.

••

Updating the risk profiles of critical entities periodically and
continuous monitoring of the profiles as a part of Control &
Risk Self Assessment

••

Monitoring of adequacy of technical reserves,
underwriting practices etc.

••

Devising required controls to mitigate the identified risks.

••

Review of policies and procedures and aligning them with
applicable legal, regulatory, and control provisions.

and

7. Description of Operating Activities
a- Medical and Takaful Insurance
Medical insurance still constitutes the largest share in the
Company’s business portfolio. Medical Insurance and Takaful
Division has continued its activities during 2016 to assert
this distinguished position. The division has developed some
products that target new customer segments. The most
important are the medical insurance programs for small and
medium enterprises (SMEs) and the compulsory medical
insurance program for visitors of the Kingdom. The Division
also signed several partnership contracts to upgrade its
services, notably its agreement with the National Medical Care
Company (Care), its contract with Al Nahdi Pharmacies Group
as well as enhancing its relationship with Aetna International..
In addition, the Medical Insurance Division has taken several
measures to facilitate the provision of health care service to
customers, most notably the creation of new medical providers
networks (1+, 2+, and 6+), the launch of a new service which
enables the clients to dispense their medication through
appointed pharmacies on direct billing, expansion of (Dawae)
service network, medical SMS messages, full automated rating
and document management system.
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b- Motor Insurance
Motor Insurance Division has taken several actions for
launching renewal facility thru online for retail business,
improvement of spending levels and technical loss ratio as
well as re-engineering the underwriting procedure for SME’s.
During 2016, the skills and capabilities of the claims executives
have been developed to keep up with the significant increase
in the claims incurred. Despite this increase, the Company
has succeeded in improving the technical loss ratio after
adopting several measures, which have greatly contributed in
increasing recoveries and growth of salvage selling in addition
to improving the contracts and discounts deal kingdom wide.
This helped the Company to improve its ability to detect and
prevent fraudulent activities, as well as reducing the period
of time allocated for claims settlement by applying payment
through bank transfer and thereby leading to increased
customer satisfaction rates.
c- Property and Casualty
P&C pays great attention and special focus for the realization
of strict compliance with the rules and regulations issued by
the regulatory authorities. It has implemented the Circular
of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority on property and
casualty as of January 2016. It has also implemented SAMA’s
circular relating to engineering insurance as of September
2016. This resulted in making major changes in underwriting
parameters (e.g. quotation process, increase in deductible
limits, pre-risk survey. The Division received a final approval
from the SAMA on 32 products, as well as a confirmation
that its products are consistent with legal (Sharia) provisions.
In the context of technical activities, four insurance groups
dedicated to the small and medium enterprises were
developed. Also a new product for comprehensive insurance
to electronic and office risks has been developed and new and
important improvements were made to public and product
liability programs. Workflow application for quotation, policy,
endorsement and certificate has enhance the process. We
are in process of finalizing E-marine portal; which helps to
create certificate immediately by our clients under Marine
open cover. The Company has purchased a new software
application to assist in Natural Hazard Assessment for
property & engineering risks and accumulation analysis. In
addition, the Company organized four technical workshops in
coordination with leading international reinsurers, uploading
of new hazard grade table in system and revamping of entire
property and engineering manual and rating table and
guidelines.
d- Key Accounts
Key Accounts has developed several mechanisms to bring
new insurance contracts from major clients to the Company’s
insurance portfolio, as well as the renewal of insurance
contracts, in addition to restoring some of the contracts it
had lost in the previous year. These efforts have resulted in the
increased renewal ratios of major customers’ contracts and
the acquisition of insurance contracts in a number of leading
economic fields such as the telecommunications sector.
e- E-commerce
E-commerce operations have witnessed major developments
during 2016, as the Company launched the new online store
that is the first in Saudi Arabia in which motor insurance

products and some other types of insurance such as travel
insurance are sold. The e-commerce sector redesigned Motor
TP and Travel insurance to comply with e-sales, and launched
online renewal as well as the launch of 3 new products
online (motor comprehensive, motor sanad plus and visit
visa medical insurance). These activities have resulted in
the increase of online sales by a large ratio. In 2016, the
Company has developed its website, which appeared in a new
design to provide interactive services for customers. , such
as, providing instant quotations, provision of new investors
website integrated with Mubasher, and the possibility to
make comparisons between the insurance programs, along
with mobile compatible website and store and integrated
the online store with Elm. The company also launched the
eligibility letter on the mobile app.
f- Marketing and Sales
Marketing and sales activities focused during 2016 on creating
products targeting new customer segments, development of
initiatives with key partners to support sales processes, the
launch of new techniques to enhance the level of service
such as the development of insurance products for small
and medium enterprises (both Medical and Motors lines of
business) and the development of seven insurance packages
for various business sectors. The Company has created new
mobile platforms for electronic sales and promoting them in
the Malls and car agencies. The Marketing Division has carried
out a number of promotional campaigns for the products
and services as well as corporate campaigns with the most
important ones are “TRUST” campaign to raise awareness on
Al-Shamel motor vehicles insurance and “SMART Insurance”
campaign, which is the leading concept of e-commerce
launched by the Company during 2016. The Marketing
Division also signed a partnership contract with the General
Authority for Statistics to sponsor the surveys and statistical
studies of economic institutions in the Kingdom. In addition,
an outstanding participation was achieved by the Company
in the Euromoney Conference in Riyadh, and sponsoring the
Saudi Marketing Conference in Jeddah through which the
Company presented its expertise in activating the concept of
“smart insurance”. These initiatives have been consolidated
through the establishment of the Media Center, intensifying
the distinguished media presence of the Company through
traditional and digital media, both locally and globally, and
activating the Tawuniya’s accounts on social media, which
has witnessed an unprecedented increase in the number of
followers.
g- Customer Services
The Customer Services Division continued the development
of initiatives to activate the “Customer Centricity” strategy.
Therefore, during 2016 the Division organized internal
workshops to raise awareness on the importance of customer
service, launched the “Customer Service Champions”
program, “Day with a Client” initiative, Smart IVR system
in the Call Center. It also developed the Tawuniya service
standard manual, activated a project to enrich customer
information, sent periodic awareness SMS messages, issued
the Customer Service Guidelines and designed the services
according to customer segments divided by categories of
age, sex, premium and history of insurance. Customer Service
also launched new value-added services such as, “Tabibi”,
“Health and Wellness Service”, “Care Program”, as well as
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some projects and activities to enhance the relationship with
the customers, such as providing gifts to inpatient customers
and visiting children in the hospitals to congratulate them on
Eid festival. In addition, the CSC contributed in supporting
the sales operations by activating the unified business owners
insurance policy issued by the Council of Cooperative Health
Insurance during 2016.

Riyadh from ABRAJ Atta’awuneya to the Company Head
Office in Al-Thomamah Road, as well as the moving of the
MRs Department to the Head Office where such moving
has been implemented according to the set plan without
affecting the work.
k- Social Responsibility
Year 2016 witnessed a major shift in the corporate social
responsibility activities as the Board of Directors has adopted
a new strategy for corporate social responsibility with three
pillars represented in the health and wellbeing, growth and
achievement as well as culture and community. Therefore,
the plans of this strategy focus on three main areas,
namely, community involvement, economic growth and
environmental action. Based on that strategy, the Company
has adopted the new policy and procedure of corporate social
responsibility, which laid the foundation for evaluating the
initiatives and activities of corporate social responsibility and
the stages of its implementation.

h- Human Resources and Development of Work Environment
The activities of recruitment and development of the
work environment carried out by the Company in 2016
consolidated the Saudization plan and raised its rates to
79.3% and this average is expected to reach 80% in 2017. The
Human Resources Department has activated a number of
activities and initiatives for recruitment and increase of staff
loyalty. The Department participated in the “Career Day” of
the insurance sector under the auspices of the Saudi Arabian
Monetary Authority. It also launched “An Appointment with
the CEO Program”, which provided an opportunity for a direct
meeting between the CEO and staff. As well, HR created the
introducing program for the integration of new employees
with the Company’s culture. As part of the development plan,
the Talent Development Center organized training programs
for management teams at the Small and Medium Enterprises,
upgrading the skills of promising Saudi employees and
organizing workshops to raise awareness on the potential
risks.
Within the framework of the development of work
environment, the Marketing Division launched the “TAWASOL
Project” to develop and activate the internal communication
activities and to build and consolidate the internal values of
the Company, increase awareness of the Company’s strategy,
mission, objectives, products and policies, as well as the
control communication channels and the development
of professional standards for the process of internal
communication. Year 2016 witnessed the execution of a large
number of internal campaigns and awareness programs, the
most important is the Company celebrations of the best
year in its history under the slogan “Together We Succeed “,
organizing a campaign to raise awareness on the evacuation,
security and safety measures, and charity campaigns during
Ramadan included “Ramadan Basket Donation” campaign.
These initiatives have contributed, to a large extent, in
increasing the employees’ satisfaction.
i-

Information Systems and Technology
The Information Services Division developed the applications
and services to keep pace with the work requirements and
communication technology. The development of operations
focused on building a new information center and the transfer
of ISD units from ABRAJ Attawuniya building to Takhasusi
building in Riyadh, as well as the documentation of technical
operations for the strategic business units. In 2016, the ISD
has launched a number of new systems and applications,
the most important is corporate motor insurance system,
launching of the Company online store in addition to the
development of the new medical insurance system to visitors
of the Kingdom.

j-

Support Services
The Support Services Department has carried out the
moving project of the Central Regional Office (CRO) in

l-

Sharia Commitment
The Shariyah consultant (Shriayah Review Bureau) issued
the Shariyah Review Report of the Company for Cooperative
Insurance on 01/06/2016. The report explained that the
Shariyah review process is represented in reviewing the
products and contracts related to the transactions and
activities conducted by the Company during the review period
(January 1, 2015 until December 31, 2015). A comprehensive
review has also been conducted to the Company’s business to
make sure of the compliance by the Company’s management
with the controls and standards adopted by the Shriyah Review
Bureau. This report has included the results of examination
to the financial statements and the Company’s investments,
agreements and contracts in addition to the work of the top
management. Based on the above, the report concluded
that the activities, operations and investments carried out
by the Company has been conducted in accordance with the
provisions of regulations and legal standards approved by the
Shriyah Review Bureau.
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8. Statement of Financial Position for the Last Five Years 2012-2016 (SR’000)

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

1,817,917

1,983,362

2,888,419

3,243,905

3,178,138

1,863,276

1,510,498

1,529,113

1,943,579

2,326,988

473,239

792,078

700,550

761,868

1,379,402

1,122,827

2,189,214

1,644,187

2,475,883

2,656,558

699,814

1,255,320

922,649

1,071,486

799,302

5,977,073

7,730,472

7,684,918

9,478,721

10,340,388

35,597

-

-

46,326

539,326

2,007,393

1,936,104

2,133,005

2,260,367

1,474,660

Statutory deposit

75,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

Cash and cash equivalents

122,781

198,766

20,583

61,813

1,021,747

Total assets- shareholders operations

2,240,771

2,234,870

2,253,588

2,468,506

3,135,733

Total Assets

8,217,844

9,965,342

9,938,506

11,947,227

13,476,121

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Surplus distribution payable

27,201

-

46,895

100,176

76,651

Reinsurers' balances payable

381,591

345,793

313,900

502,579

177,828

35,597

-

-

46,326

539,326

4,224,876

6,017,265

6,022,506

7,491,630

8,037,011

1,241,171

1,288,843

1,296,263

1,440,959

1,500,543

66,637

78,571

5,354

(102,949)

9,029

5,977,073

7,730,472

7,684,918

9,478,721

10,340,388

97,833

594,302

177,213

159,438

208,208

Share Capital

750,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Legal reserve

651,756

651,756

763,779

883,465

1,000,000

Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments

198,418

288,183

163,874

(56,861)

(71,182)

Retained earnings (Accumulated loss)

542,764

(299,371)

148,722

482,464

998,707

Total shareholders operations' liabilities and equity

2,240,771

2,234,870

2,253,588

2,468,506

3,135,733

Total Liabilities, Insurance operations surplus and Shareholders’ Equity

8,217,844

9,965,342

9,938,506

11,947,227

13,476,121

Assets- Insurance Operations
Investments
Receivables, net
Cash and cash equivalents
Reinsurers' share
Other assets
Total assets- insurance operations
Assets- Shareholders Operations
Due from insurance operations
Investments and accrued income

Liabilities and surplus -Insurance Operations’

Due to shareholders' Operations
Reserves
Other liabilities
Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments
Total Liabilities and surplus -Insurance Operations
Liabilities and Equity –Shareholders Operations
Zakat and other liabilities
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9. Business Results for the Last Five Financial Years, 2012 – 2016 (SR million)

Description

2012

2013

Gross written premiums

5,635

5,605

Net premiums earned

3,951

4,728

Total operating revenues

4,198

5,036

2014

2015

2016

6,208

7,545

8,055

4,804

5,665

6,841

5,005

5,804

7,002

Gross claims paid

3,662

4,759

4,672

4,999

5,328

Net claims incurred

3,232

4,883

3,757

4,144

5,104

Total operating costs and expenses

3,980

5,693

4,536

5,342

6,326

218

(813)

426

462

676

Surplus (deficit) from insurance operations
Net Investments Income (insurance operations)

58

155

43

88

141

Impairment charges for Investments (insurance operations)

(4)

-

-

(18)

(50)

Surplus (loss) of insurance operations

272

(657)

469

533

767

Net investment income (shareholders' operations)

111

93

180

200

134

Impairment charges for Investments (shareholders' operations)

(3)

-

-

(36)

(22)

Shareholders’ operations net income (loss) before Zakat

351

(564)

602

642

801

Shareholders’ operations net income (loss) after Zakat

320

(591)

560

598

733

Gross Written Premiums (In SR million)

Shareholders’ operations net income before Zakat (In SR million)

9,000

1000

8,000

7,545

7,000
6,000

8,055

600

6,208
5,635

400

5,605

5,000

200

4,000

0

3,000

-200

2,000

-400

1,000

-600

0

-800
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Total Assets (In SR million)
16,000
14,000

13,476
11,947

12,000
10,000
8,000

9,965

9,939

2013

2014

8,218

6,000
4,000
2,000
0
2012

801

800

2015

2016

602

642

2014

2015

351

2012

2013

-564

2016
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10. Description of Principal Activities:
The company is composed of strategic business units based on its products and services and has three operating segments divided as follows:
Medical Insurance providing coverage for healthcare, Motor Insurance providing comprehensive motor vehicles insurance (Al-Shamel) and motor
insurance cover towards third party liability, and Property & Casualty insurance which includes coverage for property, engineering, marine,
aviation, energy and general accident insurance. In addition, the company is operating the third party liability insurance for foreign vehicles
(Manafeth) and the profit of this segment is shared with other insurance companies. The following table shows the results of operating segments
and their contribution to the Company’s business for the fiscal year of 2016.
( SR’000)
Operating Segments

Medical

Motor

Manafith

P&C

Total

Total gross premiums written

5,231,087

1,512,411

235,643

1,075,994

8,055,135

Net premiums written

5,195,999

1,512,411

235,643

129,396

7,073,449

Net premiums earned

4,992,831

1,475,708

233,578

138,503

6,840,620

6,355

31

-

96,680

103,066

(3,996,114)

(1,019,049)

(43,557)

(45,578)

(5,104,298)

Policy acquisition costs

(257,442)

(173,389)

(35,975)

(50,092)

(516,898)

Excess of loss expenses

-

(18,059)

(3,248)

(8,560)

(29,867)

565

-

-

-

565

Other underwriting expenses

(98,458)

(7,781)

(20,756)

(6,345)

(133,340)

Income from Insurance Operations

647,737

257,461

130,042

124,608

1,159,848

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred

Changes in reserve for Takaful activities

General, administrative, operating and selling expenses

(435,552)

Investment income, net

140,543

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

(50,036)

Other income, net

58,386

Manafeth insurance share distribution

(106,674)

Surplus from Insurance Operations

766,515

11. Gross Written Premiums and Geographical Analysis
The Gross Written Premiums had reached SR 8,055 million in 2016, compared to SR 7,545 million in 2015 realizing a growth rate of 6.7%. The
Company’s business is mainly conducted in Saudi Arabia and has acquired all premiums from clients inside the Kingdom. The following table
shows the distribution of gross written premiums in the regions of Saudi Arabia in 2016.
Region

Gross Written Premiums (In SR million):

Central Region

4,560

Western Region

1,781

Eastern Region

1,355

Northern Region

31

Southern Region

35

Head Office

293

Total

8,055
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12. Material Differences in the Operating Results
(In SR millions)
Description

Net income (loss) before Zakat

Earnings per share in SR
Surplus (deficit) from insurance operations
before return on policyholders investments
(results of operational transactions)

Year
2016

800.9

Year
2015

642.3

Change
Volume

158.6

Change
Ratio (%)

Reason

24.7%

The reason behind the rise of net income before
Zakat compared to the similar period of the
previous year is attributed to the increase of
operational transactions results at 46.2% which
is attributed to the growth of business and
increase of net premiums earned at 20.7%, plus
the decrease of the total operating and selling
expenses at 22.1%.

7.33

5.98

1.35

22.6%

This is due to the net income from
shareholders’ operations after Zakat
amounted to SR 733 million compared to SR
598 million realized in 2015.

676.0

462.3

213.7

46.2%

This is due to the increase of net premiums
earned at 20.8%.
The increase is attributed to the expansion
in the Company’s insurance business and the
growth of operating segments comprising:
medical insurance at 6.5%, motor insurance at
16.8% and Manafeth at 20.6%.

Gross written premiums (GWP)

8,055.1

7,545.3

509.8

6.8%

Net written premiums (NWP)

7,073.4

6,421.5

651.9

10.2%

As a result of the growth of the company’s
business at 6.8% and decrease of premiums
ceded to re-insurers at 12.7%.

Net earned premiums (NEP)

6,840.6

5,664.8

1,175.8

20.8%

The increase in NEP is realized as a result of
the increase in the gross written premiums as
from the fourth quarter of year 2015.

Net claims incurred

Insurance operations’ investment income,
net

Shareholders’ operations Investment
income, net

5,104.3

4,143.9

960.4

23.2%

Increase is due to the rise of outstanding
claims at high ratio compared to the previous
year and the increase of written premiums at
the same period.

90.5

70.6

19.9

28.2%

The increase of profits is attributed to
the restructuring of some investments
leading to the realization of profits from the
policyholders’ operations investments

111.6

163.8

(52.2)

(31.9%)

Total Operating Revenues

7,002.1

5,804.3

1,197.8

20.6%

Gross claims paid

5,327.5

4,999.5

329.0

6.6%

The decrease in profits is attributed to the
economic conditions which affected the local
and global markets as some investments were
restructured to avoid the sharp decline in
markets thereby leading to some losses.
The increase is primarily attributed to the
increase of the premiums earned at 20.8%.
Business expansion and increase in the
number and amount of claims in the medical
insurance sector.

13. The Dividend Policy
Quality and adequacy of the capital deployed play an important role in the solvency and credit rating of an insurance company. For
long-term growth of an insurance company, meeting regulatory solvency margin and maintaining adequate capital (that support the
independent target credit rating) under dynamic market and financial conditions are of paramount importance.
Insurance companies have a regulator-prescribed fiduciary responsibility to maintain adequate reserves for meeting the policyholders’ liabilities
in the event of adverse developments in the market and risk environment. Board of Directors is responsible for recommending to General
Assembly the amount, frequency, and type of dividend payable, taking into consideration the above mentioned requirements. Thus, the dividend
pay-out ratio is guided by essential business factors such as Capital and Solvency requirements. Main objective of the Dividend policy is to support
the anticipated business growth and maintenance of regular dividend payments without affecting the long term sustainability of the company.
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The dividend pay-out will be based on appropriated net profit made from operations, Shareholders’ net investment income and free cash
flow. It is determined after considering the requirements ex-post dividend pay-out. The Company shall maintain the required Solvency
stipulated by the Regulator to support business growth and to sustain market volatility. The Company shall maintain the minimum
required Capital at a level that supports ‘A’ from Standard and Poor’s or equivalent rating from any other reputable international rating
agency. The Company shall be able to meet all the planned business expansion and business cycle expectation.
The Company currently applies the Dividend Policy approved by the Board of Directors on September 6, 2010 and in compliance with its
Articles of Association. The main objective of the Dividend Policy is to support anticipated business growth and maintaining of the regular
dividend payments to shareholders without affecting the long-term sustainability of the Company. This policy is in compliance with the
regulations issued by Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority, whereby the shareholders of the Company are to receive 90% of the surplus
resulted from insurance operations and the policyholders are to receive the remaining 10%. Profit Distribution Policy of the company is
based on Article (44) of its Articles of Association. According to this article, the Shareholders’ profits shall be distributed in the following way:
1.

Zakat allocations to be withheld.

2. Twenty percent (20%) of the net profits shall be allocated for the formation of a legal reserve. This allocation will be discontinued if
the legal reserve reaches 100% of the paid- up capital.
3. An amount of the remainder, equal to 5% of the paid up capital, shall then be distributed to shareholders as a first installment.
4. An amount of the remainder, not to exceed 10%, shall be distributed as remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors’
(BOD), as set in established rules and regulations.
5. The remainder shall be distributed to shareholders as a share in profits or transferred to a retained profits account.
6. By decision of the Board of Directors’ (BOD), periodical profits deducted from the annual profits cited under subsection (3) above
may be distributed, in accordance with applicable rules and regulations issued by competent authorities.
14. Proposed distribution of Surplus from Insurance Operations for 2016:
Insurance operations with return on investments realized a surplus amounting to SR 766.515 million in 2016. In accordance with the
requirements of the Executive Regulations of the Cooperative Insurance Law, 90% of the surplus from insurance operations, in the value
of SR 689.864 million was transferred to the statement of shareholders’ comprehensive income, while SR 76.651 million (equal to 10%
of the remaining surplus) will be distributed to policyholders.
15. Proposed distribution of Shareholders’ profits for 2016:
The Board of Directors recommends to distribute dividends to shareholders for year 2016 amounting to SR 500 million at SR 5 per share at the
percentage of 50% of the share nominal value. In addition, there is no arrangement or agreement, under which any shareholder has waived
his rights to profits.
16. Board of Directors’ Remuneration Proposed for 2016:
In accordance with Article (44) of the company’s Articles of Association, a maximum of 10% of shareholders’ retained profits shall be
allocated for distribution to the Board of Directors (BOD) based on a decision by the General Assembly or as provided for in the relevant
regulations. Accordingly, the Board has proposed a distribution of SR 1.8 million to its members for 2016.
17. Associate Companies and Their Business Activities and Revenues
Associates represent companies where 20%- 50% of the outstanding shares are owned by Tawuniya or the company has significant
influence, but not control over the associate’s operations. Since Tawuniya owns shares in three associates, the following is a statement
for these companies:

Company Name

Country of
Main
Incorporation
Business
and Place of
Activity
Business

No. of
shares

No. of
debt
instrument

Paid-up
capital
SR’000

Tawuniya’s
Revenues Profit/Loss
Share
SR’000
SR’000
acquired %

Tawuniya’s
Share
in Profit
SR’000

United Insurance
Company

Insurance

Bahrain

2,500,000

0

50,000

50%

74,436

28,988

14,494

Waseel Application
Services Provider

Electronic
linking

Saudi
Arabia

60,000

0

24,000

45%

31,781

15,300

6,885

Najm Insurance Services
Company

Insurance
services

Saudi
Arabia

1,923,080

0

50,000

3.45%

239,238

25,954

895

Note: Revenues of the United Insurance Company as of 30 November 2016, revenues of the Waseel Application Services Provider as of 30 November 2016 and
revenues of the Najm Insurance Services Company as of 30 September 2016.
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With regard to geographic analysis of the revenues of associate outside Saudi Arabia, the United Insurance Company principally conducts
its business in the Kingdom of Bahrain. Therefore, its revenues are acquired from premiums by clients inside Bahrain. Tawuniya acquired
its shares in the profits of the United Insurance Company for year 2016. As for the other two subsidiaries inside the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, i.e. (Waseel Application Services Provider and Najm Insurance Services Company) are transacting their business activity inside
the Saudi Arabia only and therefore their revenues are acquired from clients inside the KSA. In addition to its share of profits, Tawuniya
acquired insurance premiums from Waseel Application Services Provider and Najm Insurance Services Company against two medical
insurance contracts to their employees. These two contracts have been disclosed in section (31) of this report.
18. Compliance with Corporate Governance Regulations
Tawuniya has applied all articles of the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority (CMA), except
Paragraph (d) of article (6) due to the difficulty to verify as the article provides for (Investors who are judicial persons and who act on
behalf of others - e.g. investment funds- shall disclose in their annual reports their voting policies, actual voting, and ways of dealing with
any material conflict of interests that may affect the practice of the fundamental rights in relation to their investments).
Also the Paragraph (i) of article (12) is not applicable which provides for (Judicial person who is entitled under the company’s Articles of
Association to appoint representatives in the Board of Directors, is not entitled to nomination vote of other members of the Board of
Directors).
Moreover, the Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Regulation issued by the Saudi Arabia Monetary Authority
(SAMA) and the Corporate Governance Policy of the Company. The requirement for independent directors will be observed in the next
sessions in accordance with these two regulations as its enforcement becomes effective at the latest period of the present Board, noting
that the Company is in strict compliance with the representation of the independent directors pursuant to the Companies Law and the
regulations of the Capital Market Authority.
19. Functions of the Board of Directors
With due regard to the prerogatives of the General Assembly, the Board of Directors shall have full powers to the management of the
Company. Within the limits of its powers, it shall have the right to authorize one or more members of the Board or other non-members
to handle certain assignment(s). For example, but not limited to, the Board shall have power to represent the Company in its relations
with third parties, governmental and private entities, before all competent courts, Grievances Lifting Board, labor offices, senior and
primary committees for the settlement of labor disputes, commercial papers committee, all other judicial committees and arbitration
organizations. Civil Rights Dept., police authorities, chambers of commerce and industry, all companies and establishments, banks,
commercial houses and government financing institutions of various titles and terms of reference as well as other lenders. The Board
shall have full powers for ratification, claiming, defending. pleading, filing suits, compromise, conciliation, acceptance and objecting
of verdicts, arbitration, request the execution of verdicts, raising opposition, receiving proceeds of verdicts enforcement, discharge
debtors from their obligations, engage in the bidding, buying, selling and mortgaging of real estate. In addition, the Board shall have full
powers to enter into contracts, sign on behalf of the Company on all types of contracts, papers and documents, including for instance,
but without limitation, the articles of incorporation of the companies in which the Company has shares, sing all their amendments,
addendums and the decisions of amendment, sign the agreements and deeds before notary publics and official bodies, as well as signing
loans, guarantees and warranties agreements and deeds for the sale and purchase of real estate, issuance of legal powers of attorney on
behalf of the Company, buying, selling release and discharge, acceptance of release, handing over and take over, leasing, rental, receiving
and payment of rents and payables, the opening of accounts and credits, withdrawals from and deposits at the various banks, issuance
of guarantees for banks, funds and government funding institutions and to sign all papers, bonds, checks, all commercial papers and
documents as well as all banking transactions.
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20. Formation of the Board of Directors
The Ordinary General Assembly convened on the 16th of March, 2014 elected the BOD members for the tenth session began on the
26th of March, 2014 and lasts for a three-year period expiring on the 25th of March, 2017. The Ordinary General Assembly convened
on the 21st of March, 2016 approved the nomination of Mr. Abdul Aziz Ibrahim Al-Nuwaiser and Mr. Ghassan Abdul Karim Al-Malki as
BOD members in replacement to Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Modaimigh and Mr. Ahmed Fareed Al-Ulaqi who has resigned in 2015. Below is the
formation of the Board of Directors during 2016, classification of directors and names of the other companies where the Board director
is nominated as member of the Board and the entity such the director represents, noting that no BOD member occupies any official
position in Tawuniya:

Member Name

Independent

Joint stock companies in which the
Tawuniya BOD member acts as a
member of its Board

ü

Al-Faislaih Group, United Insurance
Company (Bahrain).

Membership Classification
Executive

Non-Executive

HE Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd,
Chairman
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
Vice Chairman

ü

United Insurance Company (Bahrain).

(Representative of Public Pension Agency
Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez
Director
Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi
Director

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin
Director

ü

National Petrochemical Company and
United Insurance Company (Bahrain).

ü

United Insurance Company (Bahrain).

Astra Industries Group, Waseel
Application Service Provider, Ittihad
Ittisalat Company (Mobily), Al Yousr
Leasing and Financing.

ü

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid
Director

Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery
Director

(His membership in Najm Insurance
Services and the United Insurance
Company expired in August 2016).

ü

NCB, Qassim Cement Company,
DAEM Real Estate Investment

ü

Ittihad Ittisalat Company (Mobily),
Alinma Bank (His membership expired
on 20/05/2016), Tabuk Cement
Company (His membership expired on
31/12/2016).

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki
Director
(representative of the General
Organization for Social Insurance –
GOSI)
Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nuwaiser
Director

ü

None

ü

None
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21. The Number of Board Meetings and the Attendance Record of Each Meeting
Tawuniya BOD held 7 meetings during 2016. The following is the attendance record of each meeting:
Abdulaziz
Al-Zaid

Hamood
Twaigery

Ghassan

Marzoqi

Ali AlSubaihin

Al-Malki

Abdul
Aziz AlNuwaiser

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

4th Meeting
5/9/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Did not
Attend

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

5th Meeting
28/9/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

6th Meeting
26/10/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Did not
Attend

7th Meeting
21/12/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

7

7

7

7

6

7

7

7

6

No. of
meetings

Soliman Al
Humayyd

Waleed
Aleisa

Abdullah
Al-Fayez

1st Meeting
7/2/2016

Attended

Attended

2nd Meeting
21/2/2016

Attended

3rd Meeting
29/5/2016

Total

Saad

22. BOD Committees
a) Executive Committee
Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

Chairman

Independent

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

Vice-chairman

Non-executive

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin

Member

Non-executive

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Member/ Tawuniya CEO

He is not a Board Director

Committee Jurisdictions and Duties
1.

Providing recommendations to the Board of Directors (BOD) on strategic and operating plans, budgets, business plans and necessary
actions required.

2.

Making decisions about the issues delegated by the Board that are outside the scope of CEO’s powers, including those issues related to
capital expenditures and purchases within the limits delegated to the committee by the Board of Directors.
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Attendance Record of Executive Committee Meetings
Number of
meetings

Mr. Soliman S.
Al-Humayyd

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

First:
23/03/2016

Attended

Attended

Didn’t Attend

Attended

Second:
29/05/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Third:
28/09/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fourth:
21/12/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

4

4

3

4

Total

b) Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

Chairman

Non-executive

Member

Independent

Member

Independent

Member

Non-executive

Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

(His membership expired on 21/12/2016)

Independent

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin

(His membership expired on 21/12/2016)

Non-Executive

Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi.

(His membership expired on 21/12/2016)

Independent

Mr. Hamood A. Al-Twaigery
(His membership began on 21/12/2016)
Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al-Nuwaiser
(His membership began on 21/12/2016)
Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki
(His membership began on 29/05/2016)

Committee Jurisdictions and Duties
1.

To recommend to the Board of Directors nomination for membership of the Board of Directors and its committees, in accordance with
the regulatory requirements, policies and standards adopted.

2.

Conduct an annual review for the needs of the suitable skills for membership of the Board of Directors and its committees and preparing
a description to the capabilities and qualifications required for membership of the Board and its committees and determine the time
that needs to be devoted by the member to the work of the Board and / or its committees.

3.

Assess the structure and composition of the Board and its committees, determine their vulnerabilities on a regular basis and propose the
necessary steps to address them.

4.

Assess and monitor the independence of the members of the Board and its committees and making sure there are no conflicts of interests, including
ensuring, on an annual basis, the independence of Board independent members.

5.

Develop clear policies for compensation and remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors and its committees and senior management.

6.

Evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and its committees periodically.
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7.

Present recommendations with respect to the nomination and dismissal of the members of senior management.

8.

Design the policy and procedures for succession to the CEO and senior members of top management and monitoring the
implementation of the succession plans and procedures.

9.

Review the compensation plans of the members of senior management

10. Supervise the induction program and training for members of the Board of Directors.
11. Submit recommendations to the Board on matters relating to remuneration and nomination.

Attendance Record of Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings
Number of
meetings

Mr. Soliman S.
Al-Humayyd

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin

Mr. Saad A.
Al-Marzoqi

Mr. Ghassan A.
Al-Malki

First:
07/02/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a member of
the Committee

Second:
22/3/2016

Attended

Attended

Did not Attend

Attended

He is not a member of
the Committee

Third:
17/04/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

He is not a member of
the Committee

Fourth:
29/05/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

His membership
began on 19/05/2016

Fifth:
28/09/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Sixth:
20/10/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

6

6

5

6

2

Total

c) Audit Committee
Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al-Nuwaiser

Chairman

Independent

Mr. Alaa Abdullah Al-Faddi

Member

He is not a Board member

Mr. Turki A. Al Luhaid

Member

He is not a Board member

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

(His membership expired on 28/07/2016)

Independent

Mr. Thamer Al-Otaish

(His membership expired on 28/07/2016)

He is not a Board member
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Committee Jurisdictions and Duties
1-

Present recommendations to BOD to approve the nomination or re-nomination of the external auditors, and this includes ensuring that
the external auditors have expertise necessary to perform the audit of the Company’s business professionally..

2.

Appoint and dismiss the chief compliance officer after obtaining “No Objection” in writing from SAMA.

3.

Appoint and dismiss the chief internal auditor after obtaining “No Objection” in writing from SAMA.

4.

Ensure the independence of the external auditors from the company members of the Board and senior management.

5.

Ensure the independence of the Internal Audit Department or the chief internal auditor in the performance of their duties, and verify the
absence of any restrictions on their acts or the presence of any matter of negative impact on their acts.

6.

Ensure the independence of Compliance Department or chief compliance officer in the performance of their duties, and verify the
absence of any restrictions on their acts or the presence of any matter of negative impact on their acts.

7.

Discuss the annual and quarterly interim financial statements with the external auditors and senior management of the Company before they are issued.

8.

Examine and review the annual and quarterly interim financial statements and recommend to the Board thereon.

9.

Study the internal and external auditors’ plan.

10. Study and approve the compliance plan as well as follow-up it’s implementation.
11. Study the important accounting policies, their procedures and changes that may be carried out on them.
12. Prepare a report on the Committee’s opinion on the adequacy of internal controls system in the Company and the other work the
Committee has performed within the scope of its jurisdiction. This report must be presented in Head Office of the Company before (10)
days from the date of the General Assembly.
13. Coordinate between the internal and external auditors.
14. Examine the reports of external auditors and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.
15. Review the reports of the Internal Audit Department or internal auditor and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.
16. Review the reports of the Compliance Department and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.
17. Study the reports issued by the regulatory and supervisory authorities or official regulator and make recommendations thereon to the
Board of Directors.
18. Assess the level of efficiency, effectiveness and objectivity of the work of external auditors, Internal Audit Department or internal
auditor, the Compliance Department or chief compliance officer.
19. Study the observations of SAMA and the relevant supervisory and regulatory authorities on any legal violations or requests for corrective
measures and make recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors.
20. Study the evaluation of the internal and external auditors on the internal control procedures.
21. Study the processes among the entities of the group and operations with related parties.
22. Study the actuary reports and make recommendations thereon to the Board.
23. Ensure the Company’s compliance with implementation of the proposals and recommendations of the actuary when they are
compulsory under the regulations and instructions issued by SAMA and the relevant supervisory and regulatory authorities.
24. Follow-up the reports issued by SAMA and the relevant supervisory and regulatory authorities concerned and make recommendations
thereon to the Board.
25. Determine the monthly salary, stimulating bonus and other awards for the Internal Audit Department or internal auditor in accordance
with the internal regulations of the Company which are approved by the Board.
26. Determine the monthly salary, stimulating bonus and other awards for the Compliance Department or chief compliance officer in
accordance with the internal regulations of the Company which are approved by the Board.
27. Ensure the availability of a written regulation on the rules of professional ethics and conduct after its approval by the Board to ensure that
the Company’s business activities are transacted in a fair and ethical manner.
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28. Follow-up the important lawsuits filed by or versus the Company with the manager of Compliance Department or chief compliance
officer, and submit periodic reports on them to the Board.
29. Ensure the optimal use of information technology and the availability of necessary controls to get accurate, authentic and reliable
information and data.

Attendance Record of Audit Committee Meetings
Number of
meetings

Mr. Abdullah
Al-Fayez

Mr. Abdulaziz
Al-Nuwaiser

Mr. Alaa Abdullah
Al-Faddi

Mr. Thamer Al-Otaish

Mr. Turki Al –Luhaid

First:
17/1/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Second:
21/1/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Third:
7/2/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fourth:
1/3/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fifth:
13/4/2016

Attended

Attended

Did not attended

Attended

Attended

Sixth:
16/4/2016

Attended

Attended

Did not attended

Attended

Attended

Seventh:
4/5/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Eighth:
11/5/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Ninth:
15/5/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Tenth:
1/6/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Eleventh:
18/7/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Twelfth:
19/9/2016

His membership
expired

Attended

Attended

His membership
expired

Attended

Thirteenth:
26/9/2016

His membership
expired

Attended

Attended

His membership
expired

Attended

Fourteenth:
12/10/2016

His membership
expired

Attended

Attended

His membership
expired

Attended

Fifteenth:
14/11/2016

His membership
expired

Attended

Attended

His membership
expired

Attended

Sixteenth:
28/11/2016

His membership
expired

Attended

Attended

His membership
expired

Attended

Seventeenth:
13/12/2016

His membership
expired

Attended

Attended

His membership
expired

Attended

11

17

15

11

17

Total
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d) Investment Committee
Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

Chairman

Independent

Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery

Member

Independent

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Member/ Tawuniya CEO

He is not a Board member

Committee Jurisdictions and Duties
1.

Review and approve the investment strategy and policies provided by the executive management.

2.

Supervise the implementation of the investment strategy and policies and ensure strict compliance with them.

3.

Review and evaluate the investment proposals that require the approval of the Committee, and make decisions about the Company’s
investments in the limits of powers granted by the Board of Directors.

4.

Nominate the investment managers outside the Kingdom and evaluate their services, terminate their duties and determine their fees.

5.

Define the investment limits inside and outside the Kingdom in accordance with the Regulations issued by SAMA.

6.

Supervise the observance of investment limits in each investment tool.

7.

Review and evaluate the Company’s existing investments through the periodic reports on the same.

8.

Inform the Board on its works, findings or decisions taken.

Attendance Record of Investment Committee Meetings
Number of
meetings

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid

Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

First:
11/01/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Second:
25/01/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Third:
01/05/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fourth:
16/06/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Fifth:
26/09/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

Sixth:
08/12/2016

Attended

Attended

Attended

6

6

6

Total
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e) Risk Committee
The Risk Committee was formed during year 2016 to conform with article No. (107) of the Insurance Corporate Governance Regulations.
The Ordinary General Assembly of the Company held on 20/10/2016 approved the rules for selecting members of the Risk Committee.
Based on the Board of Directors’ decision dated 21/12/2016 and the approval of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority, the members of
the Committee have been chosen as outlined in the following table, and the Committee did not hold any meeting during 2016.
Chairman and Members

Membership capacity

Classification

Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd

Chairman

Independent

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

Member

Independent

Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi

Member

Independent

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Member/ Tawuniya CEO

He is not a Board member

Committee Jurisdictions and Duties
1.

Identify the risks the Company may be exposed to and maintain a level of risk acceptable to the Company.

2.

Supervise the risk management systems and assessing their effectiveness.

3.

Design a comprehensive strategy for the management of the Company’s risks, supervise the application of risk management, review and
update such strategy periodically, taking into account the related internal and external changes.

4.

Review the risk management policies.

5.

Review and re-assess the level of risk acceptance by the Company and the extent of its exposure to risks periodically.

6.

Present detailed reports to the Board on the potential risks and make recommendations on how to manage them.

7.

Provide advice to the Board of Directors about the issues pertaining to risk management.

23. Remuneration of Board members for attending the Board meetings and Membership and Meetings of the Committees

Name of Member

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr. Ghassan
Mr. Soliman Mr. Waleed Mr. Abdullah Mr. Saad A. Mr. Ali A.
Abdulaziz Hamood A.
Abdul Aziz I.
A. Al-Malki
Al-Humayyd A. Aleisa M. Al-Fayez Al-Marzoqi. Al-Subaihin
A. Al Zaid Al Twaigery
Al- Nuwaiser

Remuneration for attending
the Board meetings

21,000

21,000

21,000

21,000

18,000

21,000

21,000

21,000

18,000

Remuneration for
membership of Committees
and attending their meetings

130,000

130,000

100,000

118,000

124,000

118,000

118,000

106,000

176,000

Total (SR)

151,000

151,000

121,000

139,000

142,000

139,000

139,000

127,000

194,000
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24. Remuneration of Committees’ members outside the Board for their membership in the Committees and attending their
Meetings

Name of Member

Remuneration Amount (SR)

Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

195,000

Mr. Alaa Abdullah Al-Faddi

70,000

Mr. Turki Al-Luhaid

70,000

25. Members of the Company’s senior management
Mr. Raeed Abdullah Al-Tamimi
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Qualification and Experience

Mr. Raeed Al-Tamimi joined Tawuniya in 1996 and over the past 20
years he has held a number of key positions including SVP- Technical,
Vice President- Medical and Takaful Insurance, as well as the General
Manager for HR & BS. In addition to his responsibilities at Tawuniya,
Al-Tamimi serves as the Chairman of the General Committee for
Insurance Companies under the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority
(SAMA). He is also a board member of Waseel Company and Najm
Insurnace Services Company. Al-Tamimi holds a Bachelor Degree
from UK and is also a Certified Professional in Health and Hospital
Administration (CPHHA) from the American Institute of Healthcare
Quality. He is also certified by the American Health Insurance Plan
(AHIP) with the designation of Managed Healthcare Professional
(MHP). Al-Tamimi has also undertaken professional programs at
globally renowned institutions that include the London Business
School, Fitch Learning, INSEAD and IMD.

Mr. Abdulaziz Hassan Al Boug
Senior Vice President – Sales and Marketing

Qualification and Experience

Al Boug joined Tawuniya in 1997 and prior to his current position, he
served as VP-Sales, the company’s Key Accounts General Manager,
the Western Region Key Accounts Manager, the Western Region
Business Development Manager and Medical Insurance Underwriter.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in International Business Administration
from King Abdulaziz University, a US certificate in medical insurance,
and is a certified Medical Underwriting Specialist (CII) from the
Chartered Insurance Institute, UK. Al-Boug has participated in many
specialized courses and attended various conferences organized by
the local, regional and international institutions.

Mr. Abdullah Abdulaziz Al-Arfaj
Chief Operating Officer (COO)

Qualification and Experience

Prior to this responsibility, Al-Arfaj worked in managerial positions
such as VP-Medical & Takaful, General Manager for medical
insurance & Takaful, and medical claims manager. He received a
Bachelor’s degree in Quantitative Methods from King Saud University
and in addition to his current position he serves as a member of the
Board of Directors in WASEEL and also heads up several committees
in Tawuniya. Al-Arfaj has participated in many specialized
courses and attended various conferences organized by the local,
international and regional institutions.

Annual Report 2016
The 2016 Board of Directors’ Report
39

Mr. Sultan Saleh Al Khomashi
Senior Vice President- Technical

Qualification and Experience

Al Khomashi joined Tawuniya in 2001, and has occupied several
senior management positions including VP- Property and Casualty,
GM Human Resources & Support Services and Non-Marine Claims
management manager. He holds a Master and Bachelor’s degrees
in Chemical Engineering from King Saud University, besides the
Master in Insurance and Risk Management from Cass Business
School, UK. He also has the Advanced Diploma in Insurance (ACII)
from the Chartered Institute Insurance (CII), UK. Al Khomashi
actively participated in local and international seminars, trainings
and conferences. He is also a member of various committees within
Tawuniya and other parties such as the Technical & Reinsurance
Committee for the industry of insurance in Saudi Arabia, under the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA)

Mr. Amr A. Al-Nemary
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Qualification and Experience

Before joining Tawuniya, Mr. Al-Nemari occupied different managerial
and financial positions at many local and international companies
including BAE Systems, Aljomaih Automotive & General Motors.
Corp., National Air Services Co. (NAS), the Arabian Petroleum Supply
Co.– ExxonMobil and Saudi Electrical Company. Mr. Al-Nemary holds
a bachelor degree in Accounting from King Abdul Aziz University in
1996. He is also a professional certified in finance and accounting
from many local and international universities, schools and institutes
including The British Council, University of Cambridge, Lambers CPA
Review, Whinney Murray & Co, Ernst & Young, Saudi Organization for
Certified Public Accountants, Saudi Accounting Association, INSEAD
– The Business School for the World, IMD – Business Learning School
and Fitch Investment and Business Learning

Mr. Fahad Al-Moammar
Vice President - Investment

Qualification and Experience

Al-Moammar has a large experience extending to 19 years in the
field of investment management, and investment portfolios at banks
and financial institutions, where he held several senior positions in
several Saudi Companies such as Manafe Holding Group, Tadawul,
Bank of Riyadh, before joining Tawuniya in 2014. Al-Moamar holds
a bachelor degree in insurance and real estate from Arkansas State
University in US, and master in finance from Baytown University US.
He participated in several specialized programs about marketing risks
management, and banking risks management organized by Citibank
and the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA).
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Mr. Abdulrahman Mohammed Al-Dokhayel
Vice President- Property & Casualty
Since he joined Tawuniya in 1998, Mr. Al-Dokhayel held a number
of senior positions in the company such as General Manager
Reinsurance & Technical Support and Treaty Reinsurance Manager.
His broad range of responsibilities include the creation of Reinsurance
policy and Strategy, managing relationships with Reinsurers and
managing the company’s Actuarial team. Al-Dokhayel holds MBA
in financial services and insurance from Vlerick Business School
and ST Gallen University and has a Bachelor’s degree in financial
management from King Saud University. He also has multiple
certifications from CII and BIBF as well as professional training
courses from Munich Re, SCOR, and Swiss Re.

Qualification and Experience

Mr. Omar Abdulrahman Al-Mahmood
Vice President- Medical & Takaful
Al- Mahmood joined Tawuniya in 2004, and has occupied several
senior management positions including Assistant GM-Medical
& Takaful and the System Development Manager. He holds a
Bachelor’s degrees in Management Information System from King
Fahad University for Petroleum and Minerals. Al- Mahmood has
participated in many specialized seminars and training courses
organized by the local, international and regional institutions such
as INSEAD, IMD and Meric. He is also a member of H&LI SubCommittee since Jan. 2016.

Qualification and Experience

26. The Capital and Ownership of Company Shares
The authorized, issued and paid-up capital of the company amounts to SR 1,000 million (One Billion Saudi Riyals). It is divided into 100 million
nominal shares of SR10 each. The ownership of company shares reflected at the beginning and end of the year are as follows:
No. of Shares
Beginning of the
Year

No. of Shares
Close of the Year

Change Ratio

Ownership Ratio

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

23,790,148

0%

23.79%

General Organization for Social Insurance

22,839,445

22,839,445

0%

22.84%

Held by the public

53,370,407

53,370,407

0%

53.37%

100,000,000

100,000,000

0%

100%

Owner

Total
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27. A Description of Interest in a Class of Voting Shares Held by Persons (Except the BOD Members, Senior Executives and Their
Relatives), which have Notified the Company of Their Holdings and any Changes thereto During the Financial Year:
Excluding the Public Pension Agency (PPA) and the General Organization for Social Insurance (GOSI) there is no other shareholder having 5% or
more shares of Tawuniya. No entity , having interest in the voting shares and that simultaneously owns 5% or more of shares, has notified the
Company of their holdings or any change to such interests during the fiscal year of 2016.

28. A Description of Interest, Contrctual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Directors and their Relatives in the Shares
or Debt Instruments of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and any Changes in such Interest or Rights during the Financial Year:

Name of person to whom
interest is accrued

Beginning of the Year

Closing of the Year
Net Change

Change Ratio

0

0

0%

89

0

0

0%

0

12.000

0

0

0%

22.000

0

22.000

0

0

0%

Saad A. Al-Marzoqi

2.000

0

2.000

0

0

0%

Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

21.000

0

21.000

0

0

0%

Hamood A. Al-Twaigery

300

0

300

0

0

0%

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nuwaiser
(New Director)

200

0

200

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0

0

0%

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

166,212

0

166,212

89

0

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

12.000

Ali A. Al-Subaihin

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Waleed A. Aleisa

Ghassan A. Al-Malki
(New Director)

The Public Pension Agency has allocated 1,000 shares to the Capital Market Authority (CMA), under the name of its representative in
Tawuniya’s Board of Directors’ (BOD), Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa, as liability shares. The General Organization for Social Insurance (GOSI) has
allocated 1,000 shares to the Capital Market Authority (CMA), under the name of its representative in Tawuniya’s Board of Directors’ (BOD),
Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki, as liability shares.
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29. A Description of Interest, Contractual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Senior Executives and Their Relatives
in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and any Changes in such Interest or Rights during
the Financial Year:
Beginning of the Year

Name of Person to Whom
Interest is Accrued

No. of Shares

Closing of the Year

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

Net
Change

No. of Debt
Instruments

Change
Ratio

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi
(CEO)

0

0

1000

0

1000

-

Abdulaziz H. Al Boug
(SVP-Sales & Marketing)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Abdullah A. Al Arfaj
COO

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Sultan S. Al Khomashi
(SVP-Technical)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Amro A. Al-Nemri
(CFO)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Fahad S. Al Moammar
(VP-Investment)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Omer A. Al Mahmoud
(VP- Medical & Takaful)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Abdul Rahman M. Al Dokhayel
(VP- P&C)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

30. Remunerations and Compensations of BOD Members and Senior Executives

(Saudi Riyal)

Description

BOD Members (Executives)

BOD members
(Non-Executives/ Independent)

Five Senior Executives Including
the CEO and CFO

Salaries and compensation

-

-

6,180,000

Fixed Allowances

-

762,000

2,858,000

Variable Remunerations

-

-

597,000

Other Remunerations and Plans

-

-

88,000

Performance-linked Annual
Remunerations

-

1,800,000

3,382,000

Total

-

2,562,000

13,105,000

Like the Company personnel , BOD members are granted an insurance cover for home and private motor vehicles at reduced rates (up to two
motor vehicles for each BOD member). Added to that, each BOD member obtains free medical insurance for him and his family members
at the same benefits provided in the Medical Insurance Policy applicable to the staff of Tawuniya. As a note, there are no arrangements or
agreements, under which any member of the Board of Directors’ or a senior executive has waived any salary or remuneration.

Annual Report 2016
The 2016 Board of Directors’ Report
43

31. Contracts and transactions with related parties (including major shareholders, Board directors and top executive management):
During 2016, some contracts were in force with organizations to which the Company or its subsidiaries are a party and in which some
members of Tawuniya’s Board of Directors (BOD), as representatives to major shareholders or associates have interests. These contracts were
entered in accordance with legal rules, regulations and procedures adopted by the Company or other parties. However, there are no probable
cases that involve a conflict of interest therein.
These contracts include the following:

Tawuniya chairman/
BOD member

Related Parties

Nature of
Transaction

Amount of Transaction for
the year ended December
31, 2016

Balance as at December
31, 2016

SR’ 000
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
(Vice Chairman)

The Public Pension
Agency

Insurance
contract

10,578

908

Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki
(Director)

The General
Organization for Social
Insurance

Insurance
contract

22,773

1,077

The General Organization for
Social Insurance

Riyadh National
Hospital

Amounts of
claims paid to
the hospital.

33,170

4,285

The General Organization for
Social Insurance

Riyadh Care Hospital

Amounts of
claims paid to
the hospital.

35,963

1,203

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid
(Director)

NCB

Insurance
contract

419,212

130,716

Mr. Soliman Saad Al-Humayyd
( The Chairman)

Al-Faisaliah Group

Insurance
contract

34,209

22,018

Etihad Etislat Co.
(Mobily)

Insurance
contract

81,411

836

Qassim Cement
Company

Insurance
contract

2,132

9

Waseel Application
Services Provider

Fees paid

12,780

(1,115)

Waseel Application
Services Provider

Insurance
contract

862

342

United Insurance
Company (Bahrain)

Insurance fees
and claims

8,436

1,223

Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin (Director)
Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery (Director)
Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid (Director)
Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin ( Director)
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi
(Tawuniya CEO)
Mr. Abdullah Al- Arfaj
(Tawuniya COO)
Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin (Director)
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi (Tawuniya CEO)
Mr. Abdullah Al- Arfaj (Tawuniya COO)
Mr. Soliman Al-Humayyd
(The Chairman)
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
( Vice Chairman)
Mr. Saad Al- Marzouqi
(Director)
Mr. Abdullah Al-Fayez
(Director)
Mr. Fahad S. Al- Moammar
(VP-Investment)
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Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin, ( Director)
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi (Tawuniya CEO )

Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin ( Director)
Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi (Tawuniya CEO )
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa (Vice Chairman)
The Public Pension Agency
The General Organization for Social Insurance
Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin (Director)

Najm Insurance Services Company

Fees paid

31.199

20.980

Najm Insurance Services Company

Insurance
contract

6.429

(32)

Raeeda
Investment Co.

Insurance
contract

1.927

9.620

Abraj attawuniyah

Rent expenses

1.662

-

Shaded Re-insurance Brokerage.

Reinsurance

8.056

(5.125)

These contracts will be presented before the Extra Ordinary General Assembly scheduled on the 21st of March, 2017 for approval and
sanction for next year. During 2016, no contracts were entered into in which the Company was a party and whereby the CFO or any other
person, who may have a relationship with him, has a substantial interest.
32. Results of Annual Audit to the Effectiveness of an Internal Control System:
The Internal Audit Department of the company has implemented the annual internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The
outcome of the annual audits resulted the presence of some observations, which the Internal Audit Department escalated by reports to
Executive Management and Audit Committee. The Board of Directors also perused the most important observations submitted by the Internal
Audit Department in respect of the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control systems adopted in the company. Accordingly, the Board
directed the Executive Management to prepare an action plan to implement the suitable solutions and address all observations. The outcome
of annual internal audit to the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control systems adopted in the company revealed the adequacy of
the prevailing control environment. The Company has an adequate internal control framework which is satisfactorily operating at all levels
providing reasonable assurance about the achievements of business objectives. It also revealed that the internal control system and risk control
applied by Tawuniya was prepared on a sound basis and therefore, implemented efficiently and effectively and is developed continuously to
cope with the volume and requirement of the Company business.
The Audit Committee has overseen the internal control activities of the Company during year 2016, reviewed all reports issued by the Internal
Audit Department and Compliance Department. The Committee also reviewed the external audit process and the performance of the external
auditors. The Committee followed up the implementation of all recommendations in all sectors and management of the Company. Also the
Committee provided independent services and consultations on the internal control system. As well, the Audit Committee reviewed and
ratified the preliminary and quarterly financial results of the Company and its annual financial statements and made recommendations to
the Board of Directors to approve them. In addition , the Committee followed up the Internal Audit Department and the management of
compliance on the methodology of audit risk-basis , which have been applied in order to ensure the Company’s ability to realize its strategic
goals. The Committee presented some fundamental issues relating to the internal control system to the Board of Directors and proposed
specific corrective measures to be implemented by the Company’s management.
33. Statutory Payments
Following is a statement of the statutory payments effected in 2016 for supervision fees, Zakat and income tax, GOSI subscriptions or
other dues along with a brief description to such payments and their reasons:
Statutory payments

Reasons

Amount (in SR million)

Social Insurance

GOSI subscriptions for the company employees .

38

Zakat and Income Tax

Tawuniya's share of Zakat payable pursuant to the regulations of
Zakat and Income Tax Department .

68

Supervision Fee

To the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA) .

37

Supervision Fee

To the Council of Cooperative Health Insurance (CCHI) .

52

Customs Duties

------

-

Total

195
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34. Investment and Reserve Plans Created Interest for Tawuniya Staff:
The Company has a savings plan under which a definite percentage of the employees’ salary is periodically deducted , with Tawuniya
investing this amount through one of the investment funds compatible with the rules of Islamic Shariah. The total number of subscribers
at the end of 2016 reached 190 employees with a subscription amounting to SR 5,466,924. In 2016 , the Company continued its home
loans plan for its eligible Saudi employees , where the number of employees granted home loans, since the inception of the plan, reached
30 and amounting to SR 30 million.
35. External Auditors:
The Ordinary General Assembly of the Company held on the 21st of March, 2016 agreed with the Audit Committee’s recommendation
to enter into contract with Price Waterhouse Coopers (PWC) and Mohamed Al-Amri & Co. (BDO), as joint external auditors of Tawuniya
financial statements for the fiscal year ending on the 31st of December, 2016 and the First Quarter of year 2017. The BOD did not issue
any recommendation to replace the external auditors approved by the General Assembly during 2016.
36. Accounting Principles Followed on the Financial Statements & External Auditor’s Reservations:
As per the request of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority (SAMA), effective from 1st of January, 2009 the Company has adapted its
financial statements to be fully compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) instead of those issued by the
Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). The Auditor’s report noted that the Company’s financial statements were
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards (34) of IFRS and not in accordance with the accounting standards issued by SOCPA.
However, the Company asserts that there is no material financial impact on the financial statements as a result of preparing them in
accordance with IFRS.
37. Statements and declarations:
a- The Company for Cooperative Insurance (Tawuniya) announces that:
••

There is no punishment, penalty or statutory reserve or restriction imposed on the Company by any judicial, supervisory, or
regulatory authority.

••

There is no punishment, penalty or statutory reserve or restriction imposed on any of the Board members by any judicial, supervisory,
or regulatory authority in respect of the Company.

••

During 2016, there are no loans (whether payable on demand or otherwise) likewise there are no debts payable by the company or
its subsidiaries and the company did not pay any amount in settlement of loans.

••

There are no convertible debt instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the
Company during 2016, and there is no consideration received by the Company against this.

••

There are no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible dept instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or
similar rights issued or granted by the Company during 2016.

••

There is no redemption, purchase, or cancellation by the Company or its subsidiaries of any redeemable debt instruments or the
amount of such securities outstanding.

b. The Company for Cooperative Insurance (Tawuniya) states that:
••

Proper books of accounts and principles have been maintained.

••

The system of internal control is sound in design and effectively implemented.

••

There are no significant doubts concerning the Company’s ability to continue as an ongoing concern.

Conclusion:
The Board of Directors’ (BOD) expresses its sincere gratitude and appreciation to our esteemed customers for the invaluable confidence.
In addition, the Board expresses its deepest thanks and appreciation to all shareholders.

Developing Products &
Customer Services

Upon the company’s establishment 30 years ago, Tawuniya’s insurance plans
focused on addressing the needs of corporate customers, mainly in terms of
fire & property insurance, engineering, aviation and marine hull. Gradually,
the company’s product portfolio grew to include more than 60 insurance
products that cater to all customer segments from the biggest companies and
SMEs to individuals. Across the years, Tawuniya developed many programs
and initiatives to serve the largest customer base in line with its customercentricity strategy.

Independent Auditor’s Report

In our opinion, the
financial statements
present fairly, in all
material respects
the financial
position of the
company as on
December 31, 2016
and comply with
the requirements of
the Regulations for
companies and the
Company’s By-Laws.
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From Manual Work to
SMART Insurance

30 years ago, most company transactions and operations were performed
manually. Then in 1988, and for the first time in the Kingdom, Tawuniya
implemented a full-fledged automation plan that consisted of adopting the
EDGE IT system by introducing an internal telecommunication network,
automated information systems, and computer technologies. Over the years,
the company committed to upgrading its IT systems and practices reaching
a major milestone in 2016 with the introduction of Smart Insurance, which
constitutes a quantum leap in customer service performance and business
operations’ management.

Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2016

SR ’000

Notes

2016

2015

298,406

312,251

9,861

9,861

ASSETS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Property and equipment, net

4

Investment property
Investments in associates

5

12,691

13,602

Available-for-sale investments

6

3,155,586

3,220,442

Prepaid expenses and other assets

7

282,796

549,991

Deferred policy acquisition costs

8

218,100

209,244

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

8, 9

2,102,745

1,827,909

Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums

8

553,813

629,974

Receivables, net

10

2,326,988

1,943,579

Murabaha deposits

12

411,000

182,621

Bank balances and cash

12

968,402

579,247

10,340,388

9,478,721

100,000

100,000

1,711

1,042

Total assets - Insurance operations

ASSETS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Statutory deposit

11

Accrued income on statutory deposit
Investments in associates

5

94,958

80,402

Available-for-sale investments

6

1,377,991

2,178,923

539,326

46,326

Due from Insurance operations
Murabaha deposits

12

905,150

16,067

Bank balances and cash

12

116,597

45,746

3,135,733

2,468,506

13,476,121

11,947,227

Total assets - Shareholders Operations
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SR ’000

Notes

2016

2015

LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
Liabilities - Insurance operations:
Reserve for discontinued operations

15

Surplus distribution payable
Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

14

Reserve for takaful activities
Gross outstanding claims and reserves

8, 16

1,621

11,211

76,651

100,176

1,500,543

1,440,959

12,902

13,467

3,577,820

3,182,367

Unearned commission income

8

54,439

51,024

Gross unearned premiums

8

4,390,229

4,233,561

Reinsurers’ balances payable

177,828

502,579

Due to Shareholders' operations

539,326

46,326

10,331,359

9,581,670

Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments

9,029

(102,949)

Total liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations

10,340,388

9,478,721

-

647

1,711

1,042

6,054

5,643

200,443

152,106

208,208

159,438

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Shareholders’ operations liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Return payable on statutory deposit
Dividends payable
Zakat

17

Total liabilities - Shareholders operations
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital

18

1,000,000

1,000,000

Legal reserve

19

1,000,000

883,465

Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments

(71,182)

(56,861)

Retained earnings

998,707

482,464

Total Shareholders’ equity

2,927,525

2,309,068

Total Shareholders’ liabilities and equity

3,135,733

2,468,506

13,476,121

11,947,227

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF INCOME - INSURANCE OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Notes

2016

2015

Gross premiums written

8,055,135

7,545,268

Less: Reinsurance Ceded

(981,686)

(1,123,816)

7,073,449

6,421,452

(232,829)

(756,627)

8

6,840,620

5,664,825

8

103,066

93,623

58,386

45,886

7,002,072

5,804,334

Gross claims paid

5,327,532

4,999,478

Less: Reinsurance Share

(343,851)

(747,772)

4,983,681

4,251,706

120,617

(107,796)

8

5,104,298

4,143,910

8

516,898

436,588

29,867

24,427

(565)

(2,873)

133,340

146,352

REVENUES

Net premiums written

8

Changes in unearned premiums, net
Net premiums earned
Reinsurance commissions
Other income, net
Total revenues
COSTS AND EXPENSES

Net claims paid

8

Changes in outstanding claims and reserves, net
Net claims incurred
Policy acquisition costs
Excess of loss expenses
Changes in reserve for takaful activities
Other underwriting expenses
Manafeth insurance share distribution

20

106,674

49,087

Operating and selling expenses

22

357,360

461,690

Other general and administrative expenses

23

78,192

82,902

6,326,064

5,342,083

676,008

462,251

Total costs and expenses
Operating surplus
Investment income, net

21

140,543

88,251

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

30

(50,036)

(17,696)

766,515

532,806

(689,864)

(479,525)

76,651

53,281

(76,651)

(53,281)

-

-

Surplus from Insurance operations
Shareholders’ appropriation from surplus
Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation
Distribution of surplus
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF THE YEAR

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1

Annual Report 2016
Financial Statements
55

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME – INSURANCE OPERATIONS

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Notes

Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation

2016

2015

76,651

53,281

111,978

(108,303)

188,629

(55,022)

Other comprehensive income / (loss):
To be recycled back to statement of income in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Notes

2016

2015

Appropriation of surplus from Insurance operations

1

689,864

479,525

Investment income, net

21

114,484

180,386

Share of profit from investments in associates, net

5

19,153

19,444

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

30

(22,034)

(36,032)

(520)

(1,020)

800,947

642,303

(68,169)

(43,875)

732,778

598,428

(14,321)

(220,735)

718,457

377,693

7.33

5.98

100,000,000

100,000,000

Other expenses, net
Income from operations before zakat
Zakat

17

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive loss:
To be recycled back to statement of income in subsequent periods:
Changes in fair value of available for sale investments

6

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in SAR)
Weighted average number of shares in issue

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31, 2016

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

SR ’000

Notes

Balance at January 1, 2015

Share capital

Legal reserve

Fair value
reserve for
availablefor-sale
investments

1,000,000

763,779

163,874

148,722

2,076,375

-

-

-

598,428

598,428

-

-

(220,735)

-

(220,735)

-

-

(220,735)

598,428

377,693

Retained
earnings

Total

Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

6

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Transfer to legal reserve

19

-

119,686

-

(119,686)

-

Dividend distribution

13

-

-

-

(145,000)

(145,000)

Balance at December 31, 2015

1,000,000

883,465

(56,861)

482,464

2,309,068

Balance at January 1, 2016

1,000,000

883,465

(56,861)

482,464

2,309,068

-

-

-

732,778

732,778

-

-

(14,321)

-

(14,321)

-

-

(14,321)

732,778

718,457

Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

6

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Transfer to legal reserve

19

-

116,535

-

(116,535)

-

Dividend distribution

13

-

-

-

(100,000)

(100,000)

1,000,000

1,000,000

(71,182)

998,707

2,927,525

Balance at December 31, 2016

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Notes

2016

2015

Operating activities:
Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation

76,651

53,281

Adjustments to reconcile surplus from Insurance operations to net cash (used in ) / from operating activities:

Shareholders’ appropriation from surplus

689,864

479,525

4

17,689

13,938

204

-

(Reversal) / provision for doubtful debts and write-offs

10

(64,386)

65,763

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

30

(118,399)

(76,521)

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

30

50,036

17,696

Share of loss / (profit) from investment in an associate

5

Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Operating surplus before changes in operating assets and liabilities

526

(4,383)

652,185

549,299

267,195

(120,974)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Deferred policy acquisition costs

(8,856)

(35,611)

(274,836)

(627,662)

76,161

(186,034)

Receivables, net

(319,023)

(480,229)

Reinsurers’ balances payable

(324,751)

188,679

156,668

942,661

3,415

9,470

395,453

519,866

(9,590)

-

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums

Gross unearned premiums
Unearned commission income
Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Reserve for discontinued operations
Reserve for takaful activities

(565)

(2,873)

59,584

144,696

(689,864)

(479,525)

(16,824)

421,763

Surplus paid to policyholders during the year

(100,176)

-

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities

(117,000)

421,763

Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Due to Shareholders’ operations
Cash (used in) / from operating activities

Investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments
Purchase of available-for-sale investments

6

3,642,778

3,483,518

(3,397,581)

(3,884,438)

Dividend received from investment in an associate

5

385

339

Purchase of property and equipment

4

(4,048)

(52,329)

241,534

(452,910)

493,000

92,465

617,534

61,318

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities
Financing activity:
Due to Shareholders’ operations
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

12

761,868

700,550

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

12

1,379,402

761,868

6

111,978

(108,303)

Non-cash supplemental information:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS

SR ’000

Notes

2016

2015

Operating activities:
Net income for the year before zakat

800,947

642,303

(689,864)

(479,525)

Adjustments to reconcile net income before zakat to net cash from operating activities:
Appropriation of surplus from Insurance operations
Impairment of available-for-sale investments

30

22,034

36,032

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

30

(43,191)

(171,890)

Share of profit from investment in associates, net

5

(20,769)

(12,981)

69,157

13,939

689,864

479,525

(647)

255

758,374

493,719

(19,832)

(16,395)

738,542

477,324

6,018,367

2,621,992

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from Insurance operations
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Cash from operating activities
Zakat paid during the year

17

Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments
Purchase of available-for-sale investments

6

(5,210,599)

(2,833,672)

Dividends received from investment in associates

5

6,213

12,422

813,981

(199,258)

(99,589)

(144,371)

Due from Insurance operations

(493,000)

(92,465)

Net cash used in financing activities

(592,589)

(236,836)

959,934

41,230

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities
Financing activities:
Dividends paid

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

12

61,813

20,583

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

12

1,021,747

61,813

6

(14,321)

(220,735)

Non-cash supplemental information:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

A Landmark Entity

Despite its modest beginnings and limited number of offices at first, Tawuniya
quickly realized that it had a great role to play in the Saudi society. In fact,
the company had major contributions to the fast development of the Saudi
insurance sector. Tawuniya has gone through several stages of growth and
expansion ever since, gradually upgrading its organizational chart and
expanding its offices. Today, the company’s headquarters in the capital Riyadh
count as a true landmark in the city while Tawuniya’s network of branches,
offices and claim centers spread across the Kingdom’s regions.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2016

1.

GENERAL

The Company for Cooperative Insurance
(the “Company”) is a Saudi joint stock
company established in Riyadh, Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia by Royal Decree Number
M/5 and incorporated on January 18,
1986 corresponding to Jumada Awal 8,
1406H under Commercial Registration
No. 1010061695. The Company’s head
office is located on Thumamah Road
(At Takhassusi) ArRabi District, P.O. Box
86959, Riyadh 11632, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia.
The purpose of the Company is to transact
cooperative insurance operations and all
related activities including reinsurance
and agency activities. Its principal lines of
business include medical, motor, marine,
fire, engineering, energy, aviation, takaful
and casualty insurance.

As required by Saudi
Arabian insurance
regulations, the
Company maintains
seperate accounts
for insurance and
shareholders’
operations.

On July 31, 2003 corresponding to Jumada
Thani 2, 1424H the Law on the Supervision
of Cooperative Insurance Companies
(“Insurance Law”) was promulgated
by Royal Decree Number (M/32). On
December 1, 2004 corresponding to
Shawwal 18, 1425H, the Saudi Arabian
Monetary Authority (“SAMA”) as the
principal agency responsible for the
application and administration of the
Insurance Law and its implementing
regulations, granted the Company a
license to transact insurance activities in
Saudi Arabia.
The Company conducts the business
and advances funds to the insurance
operations as required. On January 20,
2004 the Company amended its Articles of
Association giving authority to the Board
of Directors to determine the disposition
of the surplus from insurance operations.
On March 20, 2004, the Board of Directors
approved the disposition of the surplus
from insurance operations in accordance
with the implementing regulations issued
by the SAMA, whereby the shareholders
of the Company are to receive 90% of the

annual surplus from insurance operations
and the policyholders are to receive the
remaining 10%. Any deficit arising on
insurance operations is transferred to the
shareholders’ operation in full.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The Company presents its statement of
financial position in order of liquidity.
As required by Saudi Arabian insurance
regulations, the Company maintains
separate accounts for Insurance and
Shareholders’ operations and presents
the financial statements accordingly.
Revenues
and
expenses
clearly
attributable to either activity are recorded
in the respective accounts. The basis of
allocation of other revenue and expenses
from joint operations is as determined by
the management and Board of Directors.
b) Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost basis except for
the measurement at fair value of availablefor-sale investments and investment in
associates which is accounted for under
the equity method.
c) Functional
currency

and

presentation

These financial statements have been
presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SAR),
which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All financial information
presented in Saudi Arabian Riyal has been
rounded to the nearest thousand, except
where otherwise indicated.
d) Fiscal year
The Company follows a fiscal year ending
December 31.
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e) Critical accounting
assumptions

judgments,

estimates

and

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use
of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
year. Although these estimates and judgments are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are
critical in preparation of these financial statements:
i)

Estimation of incurred but not reported claims
The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is
an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported
subsequent to the date of statement of financial position,
for which the insured event has occurred prior to the date
of statement of financial position. The primary technique
adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified
and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims settlement
trends to predict future claims settlement trends.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are consistent with those used in the previous
year except for the adoption of the amendments to existing
standards mentioned below which has had no material impact on
these financial statements on the current year or prior years and is
expected to have an insignificant effect in future years:
••

Amendments to IAS 1 - “Presentation of Financial
Statements”, applicable for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, clarify, existing IAS
1 requirements in relation to:

••

The materiality requirements in IAS 1;

••

That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income (“OCI”) and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

••

That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

••

That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as
a single line item, and classified between those items that will or
will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The amendments further clarify the requirements that apply when
additional subtotals are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI.
•

ii) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Company determines that available-for-sale financial
assets are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial assets below its cost. The determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Company evaluates among other factors,
the normal volatility in share price, the financial health of
the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

Annual improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 cycle applicable
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. A
summary of the amendments are as follows:
••

IFRS 5 - “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”, amended to clarify that
changing from one disposal method to the other would
not be considered a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in
IFRS 5.

••

IFRS 7 - “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has been
amended to clarify that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement
in a financial asset. The nature of the fee and the
arrangement should be assessed in order to consider
whether the disclosures are required under IFRS 7 and

iii) Impairment of receivables
A provision for impairment of receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

Amendments to IAS 16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment”
and IAS 38 - “Intangible Assets”, applicable for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, restricts the use
of ratio of revenue generated to total revenue expected to be
generated to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize
intangible assets.
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the assessment must be done retrospectively. IFRS 7
has been further amended to clarify that the offsetting
disclosure requirements do not apply to condensed
interim financial statements, unless such disclosures
provide a significant update to the information reported
in the most recent annual report.
••

IAS 19 - “Employee Benefits” - amendment clarifies that
market depth of high quality corporate bonds is assessed
based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When
there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in
that currency, government bond rates must be used.

income – insurance operations and accumulated surplus over
the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis.
The portion of premiums and commissions that will be earned in
the future is reported as unearned premiums and commissions,
respectively, and is deferred based on the following methods:
•

Last three months from the period in respect of marine cargo;

•

Pre-defined calculation for Engineering class of business
for risks undertaken that extend beyond a single year. In
accordance with this calculation, lower premiums are earned
in the first year which gradually increases towards the end of
the tenure of the policy; and

•

Actual number of days for other lines of business.

The Company has chosen not to early adopt the following new
standards which have been issued but not yet effective for the
Company’s accounting years beginning on or after 1 January 2017
and is currently assessing their impact. Following is a brief on the
new IFRS and amendments to IFRS, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017:

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums
written relating to the unexpired period of coverage. The
change in the provision for unearned premium is taken
to the statement of income of insurance operations and
accumulated surplus in the same order that revenue is
recognised over the period of risk.

••

Investment income

IFRS 9 - “Financial instruments”, applicable for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, and will be
applied retrospectively with some exemptions. The new
standard presents revised guidance on the classification
and measurement of financial assets, including a new
expected credit loss model for calculating impairment. IASB
had allowed temporary exemption for companies issuing
insurance contracts until 2021 or until the new insurance
contracts standard is applied, if that is earlier.

••

Amendments to IAS 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows”, applicable
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
The amendments require disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flow and non-cash changes.

••

Amendments to IAS 12 - “Income Taxes”, applicable for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
The amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible
temporary difference depends solely on a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future
changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of
recovery of the asset. Therefore, assuming that the tax base
remains at the original cost of the debt instrument, there is a
temporary difference.

••

IFRS 16 - “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The new standard eliminates the
current dual accounting model for lessees under IAS 17, which
distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and
off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, IFRS 16 proposes
on-balance sheet accounting model.
The significant accounting policies used in preparing these
financial statements are set out below:

a) Revenue Recognition
Recognition of premium and commission revenue
Premiums and commission are recorded in the statement of

Investment income on available-for-sale investments and
murabaha deposits are accounted for on an effective interest
basis.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.
b) Insurance contracts
The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance
risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the insurer
accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing
to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline,
the Company defines significant insurance risk as the possibility
of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event.
c) Claims
Claims consist of amounts payable to policyholders and third
parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage
and other recoveries, and are charged to statement of income insurance operations and accumulated surplus as incurred.
Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost
of claims incurred but not settled at the statement of financial
position date together with related claims handling costs, whether
reported by the insured or not. Provisions for reported claims not
paid as of the statement of financial position date are made on the
basis of individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based
on management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience
is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but not
reported including related claims handling costs at the statement
of financial position date.
The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related
share of the reinsurers is shown separately. Further, the Company
does not discount its liability for unpaid claims as substantially all
claims are expected to be paid within one year of the statement
of financial position date.

Annual Report 2016
Notes to Financial Statements
65

d) Salvage and subrogation reimbursement
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually
damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim (for example, salvage).
The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).
Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the
measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal
of the asset.
Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance
in the measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The
allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered
from the third party.
e) Reinsurance
In the ordinary course of business, the Company cedes insurance
risk. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater
diversification of business, allows management to control exposure
to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional
capacity for growth. Reinsurance is distributed between treaty,
facultative, stop loss and excess of loss reinsurance contracts. An
asset or liability is recorded in the statement of financial position insurance operations’ representing premiums due to or payments
due from reinsurers and the share of losses recoverable from
reinsurers. Amounts receivable from reinsurance is estimated in
a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the
insured parties. Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised
when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when
the contract is transferred to another party.
An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more
frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the
reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists
that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under
the terms of the contract and when the impact on the amounts
that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be measured
reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income
- insurance operations and accumulated surplus as incurred.
Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from
its obligations to policyholders. Premiums and claims on assumed
reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct
business, taking into account the product classification of the
reinsured business.
f) Deferred policy acquisition costs
Commissions and other costs directly related to the acquisition
and renewal of insurance contracts are deferred and amortized
over the terms of the insurance contracts to which they relate,
similar to premiums earned. All other acquisition costs are
recognized as an expense when incurred. Amortization is
recorded in the statement of income - insurance operations and
accumulated surplus.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are
treated as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or
more frequently when an indication of impairment arises. If the
assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are
not realized, the amortization of these costs could be accelerated
and this may also require additional impairment write-offs in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus. Deferred policy acquisition costs are also considered in
the liability adequacy test at each reporting date.
g) Liability adequacy test
At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contracts liabilities net of related deferred policy acquisition
costs. In performing these tests management uses current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenses. Any deficiency in the carrying amounts
is immediately charged to the statement of income - insurance
operations and accumulated surplus by establishing a provision
for losses arising from liability adequacy tests accordingly.
h) Receivables
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recognised
when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. Premiums receivable
are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance
contracts, less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts.
The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for impairment and
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is recorded in
the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus. Receivable balances are derecognised when criteria for
derecognition of financial assets is met.
i)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets that are neither classified as held for trading or
held to maturity or loans and receivables, nor are designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Such investments are initially
recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
including transaction cost and subsequently measured at fair
value. Cumulative changes in fair value of such investments are
recognized in other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income – insurance operations or shareholders
operations. Realized gains or losses on sale of these investments
are reported in the related statements of income - insurance
operations and accumulated surplus or statement of
comprehensive income - shareholders operations.
Dividend, commission income and foreign currency gain/loss
on available-for-sale investments are recognized in the related
statements of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus or statement of comprehensive income – shareholders
operations, as part of the net investment income / loss.
Any significant or prolonged decline in fair value of availablefor-sale investments is adjusted for and reported in the related
statement of comprehensive income - insurance operations and
accumulated surplus or statement of comprehensive income –
shareholders operations, as impairment charges.
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Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted
prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The
fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on
discounted cash flows using commission for items with similar
terms and risk characteristics.

impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to
the market value of a similar investment or where the fair values
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques. The input to these models is taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

••

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

••

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in payments;

••

It becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

••

The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

••

Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
Company, including:

j)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant
influence (but not control), over financial and operating policies
and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

Evidence of impairment may include:

Investments in associates are carried in the statement of financial
position at cost, plus post acquisition changes in the Company’s
share of net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the
value of individual investments.
At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired.
If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss in
the statement of income – insurance operations and accumulated
surplus or statement of comprehensive income - shareholders
operations, as the case may be.
k)

l)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position only when
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income
and expense is not offset in the statement of comprehensive
income - shareholders and insurance operations and accumulated
surplus unless required or permitted by any accounting standard
or interpretation.
m) Trade date accounting
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.
n)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

adverse changes in the payment status of issuers
or debtors in the Company; or

••

national or local economic conditions at the
country of the issuers that correlate with
defaults on the assets.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial
asset exists, the impairment is determined as follows:
••

For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the
significant or prolong decline in the fair value of the
financial asset.

••

For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment
is based on estimated future cash flows that are
discounted at the original effective commission rate.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the
Company no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise
the financial instrument, which is normally the case when
the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the
instrument are passed through to an independent third party.

••

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses at
each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.
In the case of investments classified as available-for-sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income – is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of income.
The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.
In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt
instrument is impaired, the Company considers the factors such as
market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond
yields, rating agencies’ assessment of creditworthiness, country’s
ability to access the captial markets for new debt issuance and
probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders
suffering losses through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.
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The amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of income.

cumulative years of service, as defined by the conditions stated in
the laws of Saudi Arabia. The Company also maintains an employees’
savings plan that allows specific saving percentages from employees’
salaries, with contributions by the Company.

o)

s)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Land is not depreciated.
The cost of other items of property and equipment is depreciated
on the straight line method to allocate the cost over estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Years

Provisions, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation
(legal or constructive) arising from past events, and the costs to
settle the obligation are both probable and may be measured
reliably. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for
goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier or not.
t)

Zakat

Buildings

33

Furniture and fixtures

10

Computer equipment

4

The Company is subject to Zakat in accordance with the
regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”).
Zakat is accrued and charged to the statement of comprehensive
income - shareholders operations.

Vehicles

4

u)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. The carrying values of
these assets are reviewed for impairment when event or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are
written down to their recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus.
p)

Investment property

Investment property represents land that is held for capital
appreciation purposes. Land is stated at cost less recognized
impairment loss, if any.
q)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example, land
– are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
r)

Employees’ end-of-service benefits

Employees’ end-of-service benefits are accrued currently and are
payable as a lump sum to all employees under the terms and conditions
of Saudi Labor Regulations on termination of their employment
contracts. The liability is calculated at the current value of the vested
benefits to which the employee is entitled, should the employee leave
at the statement of financial position date. End-of-service payments
are based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances
with banks including murabaha deposits with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition.
v)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals
at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated to Saudi Riyals at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the statement of financial position date. All differences are
taken to the statements of income - insurance operations and
accumulated surplus and shareholders’ comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently
restated. Foreign exchange gains or losses on available-forsale investments are recognized in the statement of income
- insurance operations and accumulated surplus and statement
of comprehensive income - shareholders operations. As the
Company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US
dollars, foreign exchange gains and losses are not significant.
w) Operating segments
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that
is engaged in providing products or services (a business segment),
which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those
of other segments. For management purposes, the Company is
organized into business units based on their products and services
and has four reportable segments as follows:
••

Medical - coverage for health insurance.

••

Motor insurance.

••

Property and Casualty - coverage for property,
engineering, marine, aviation, energy and general
accidents insurance.

••

Manafeth – third party liability insurance for foreign
vehicles and the profit of this segment is shared with
other insurance companies.
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Operating segments do not include shareholders operations of the Company. Income earned from investments is the only revenue
generating activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are allocated to this segment on an appropriate
basis. The surplus or loss from the insurance operations is allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the chief executive officer that makes strategic decisions. No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year.
x)

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income from shareholders’ operations
each year to the legal reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.
y)

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The fair value of commissionbearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flow using commission for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.
For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar financial
assets or where the fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques. The
inputs of this models is taken from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values.
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

SAR’000

Land

Buildings

Furniture
and
fixtures

Computer
equipment

Capital
work in
progress

Vehicles

Total 2016

Total 2015

Cost:
53,036

199,302

80,541

109,347

581

16,411

459,218

406,889

Additions

-

-

1,222

1,338

248

1,240

4,048

52,329

Disposals

-

(199)

(11,713)

(5,167)

-

-

(17,079)

-

Transfers

-

1,498

(6,506)

9,725

-

(4,717)

-

-

53,036

200,601

63,544

115,243

829

12,934

446,187

459,218

January 1

-

8,611

60,227

77,651

478

-

146,967

133,029

Charge for the year

-

6,510

2,952

8,167

60

-

17,689

13,938

Disposals

-

-

(11,709)

(5,166)

-

-

(16,875)

-

December 31

-

15,121

51,470

80,652

538

-

147,781

146,967

December 31, 2016

53,036

185,480

12,074

34,591

291

12,934

298,406

-

December 31, 2015

53,036

190,691

20,314

31,696

103

16,411

-

312,251

January 1

December 31

Accumulated Depreciation:

Net book value

5. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
i)

Insurance Operations:

SAR’000

2016

2015

Balance, January 1

13,602

9,558

Share of (loss) / profit (Note 21)

(526)

4,383

Dividends received

(385)

(339)

12,691

13,602

Balance, December 31

The Company’s interest in associate, which is unquoted, is as follows along with summarized financial information:
Najm Insurance Services
SAR’000

Country of Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest
Held

As of September 30, 2016*

Saudi Arabia

234,704

78,327

239,238

25,954

3.45%

As of September 30, 2015*

Saudi Arabia

221,836

43,131

215,767

51,568

3.45%

* Based on latest available management accounts.
The Company has significant influence over the financial and operating policy decision of the associate by way of representation on its board
of directors.
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ii) Shareholders Operations
SAR’000
Balance, January 1
Share of profit
Dividends received

2016

2015

80,402

79,843

19,153

19,444

(6,213)

(12,422)

1,616

(6,463)

94,958

80,402

Unrealized gain / (loss) on investments
Balance, December 31

The Company’s interest in associates, which are unquoted, is as follows along with summarized financial information:
a) United Insurance Company
SAR’000

Country of Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest
Held

As of November 30, 2016 *

Bahrain

235,337

102,594

74,436

28,988

50%

As of November 30, 2015 *

Bahrain

208,492

93,192

70,307

27,890

50%

* Based on latest available management accounts.
b) Waseel Application Services Provider
SAR’000

Country of Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest
Held

As of November 30, 2016 *

Saudi Arabia

68,060

8,850

31,781

15,300

45%

As of November 30, 2015 *

Saudi Arabia

51,532

3,941

28,389

12,697

45%

* Based on latest available management accounts.

6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
i)

Insurance operations:

Available-for-sale investments of the insurance operations comprise the following:
SAR’000
Local / regional funds and fixed income investments
Local / regional equity
Foreign funds and fixed income investments
Total

2016

2015

2,799,658

2,258,711

63,564

582,916

292,364

378,815

3,155,586

3,220,442
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Movements in available-for-sale investments are as follows:
SAR’000

Quoted securities

Unquoted securities

Total

459,423

2,409,577

2,869,000

As at January 1, 2015

Purchases

362,176

3,522,262

3,884,438

Disposals

(188,344)

(3,218,653)

(3,406,997)

Impairment of investments

(17,696)

-

(17,696)

Changes in fair value of investments

(32,643)

(75,660)

(108,303)

As at December 31, 2015

582,916

2,637,526

3,220,442

As of January 1, 2016

582,916

2,637,526

3,220,442

Purchases

837,724

2,559,857

3,397,581

Disposals

(1,038,095)

(2,486,284)

(3,524,379)

(50,036)

-

(50,036)

70,119

41,859

111,978

402,628

2,752,958

3,155,586

Impairment of investments
Changes in fair value of investments
As at December 31, 2016

The movement of changes in fair value of investments is as follows:
SAR’000
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to statement of income- insurance operations

2016

2015

180,341

(49,478)

(118,399)

(76,521)

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

50,036

17,696

Total

111,978

(108,303)

ii) Shareholders Operations:
Shareholders’ operations available-for-sale investments comprise the following:
SAR’000
Local / regional funds and fixed income investments

2016

2015

1,145,607

1,882,673

Local / regional equity

43,683

246,636

Foreign funds and fixed income investments

188,701

-

-

49,614

1,377,991

2,178,923

Foreign equity
Total
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Movements in available-for-sale investments are as follows:
SAR’000

Quoted securities

Unquoted securities

Total

290.130

1.761.990

2.052.120

As at January 1, 2015

Purchases

382.213

2.451.459

2.833.672

Disposals

(360.495)

(2.089.607)

(2.450.102)

Impairment of investments

(36.032)

-

(36.032)

Changes in fair value of investments

(29.180)

(191.555)

(220.735)

As at December 31, 2015

246.636

1.932.287

2.178.923

As at January 1, 2016

246.636

1.932.287

2.178.923

Purchases

547.063

4.663.536

5.210.599

Disposals

(748.666)

(5.226.510)

(5.975.176)

(22.034)

-

(22.034)

Changes in fair value of investments

35.066

(49.387)

(14.321)

As at December 31, 2016

58.065

1.319.926

1.377.991

Impairment of investments

The movement of changes in fair value of investments is as follows:
SAR’000
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to statement of income- shareholders operations
Impairment on available-for-sale investments
Total

2016

2015

6,836

(84,877)

(43,191)

(171,890)

22,034

36,032

(14,321)

(220,735)

The available-for-sale investments mainly comprise of mutual funds, sukuks and equities issued by corporate and financial institutions
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such investments are unrated since credit ratings by reputable external agencies were not available at
the reporting date.
7.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

SAR’000

2016

2015

194.394

414.493

Prepaid expenses

46.870

79.008

Excess of loss premium deposits

12.972

11.640

Other assets

28.560

44.850

282.796

549.991

Advances to medical service providers and others

Total
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8. MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS, UNEARNED COMMISSION INCOME, UNEARNED PREMIUMS
AND OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
a) Deferred policy acquisition costs
SAR’000

2016

2015

Balance, January 1

209,244

173,633

Incurred during the year

525,754

472,199

(516,898)

(436,588)

218,100

209,244

Amortized during the year
Balance, December 31

b) Unearned commission income
SAR’000

2016

Balance, January 1

51,024

Commission received during the year
Commission earned during the year

2015
41,554

106,481

103,093

(103,066)

(93,623)

54,439

51,024

Balance, December 31

c) Unearned premiums
2016
SAR’000

Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Net

Balance, January 1

4,233,561

(629,974)

3,603,587

Premiums written during the year

8,055,135

(981,686)

7,073,449

Premiums earned during the year

(7,898,467)

1,057,847

(6,840,620)

4,390,229

(553,813)

3,836,416

Balance, December 31

2015
SAR’000

Gross

Balance, January 1

3,290,901

(443,941)

Premiums written during the year

7,545,268

(1,123,816)

6,421,452

Premiums earned during the year

(6,602,608)

937,783

(5,664,825)

4,233,561

(629,974)

3,603,587

Balance, December 31

Reinsurers’ share

Net
2,846,960
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d) Outstanding claims and reserves

2016

SAR’000
Balance, January 1
Claims paid

Gross

2015

Reinsurers
share

Net

Gross

Reinsurers
share

Net

3,182,367

(1,827,909)

1,354,458

2,662,501

(1,200,247)

1,462,254

(5,327,532)

343,851

(4,983,681)

(4,999,478)

747,772

(4,251,706)

Claims incurred

5,722,985

(618,687)

5,104,298

5,519,344

(1,375,434)

4,143,910

Balance, December 31

3,577,820

(2,102,745)

1,475,075

3,182,367

(1,827,909)

1,354,458

Outstanding claims

2,254,192

(1,764,393)

489,799

1,860,957

(1,495,909)

365,048

Salvage and subrogation

(123,100)

-

(123,100)

(88,643)

-

(88,643)

Incurred but not reported claims

1,446,728

(338,352)

1,108,376

1,410,053

(332,000)

1,078,053

Balance, December 31

3,577,820

(2,102,745)

1,475,075

3,182,367

(1,827,909)

1,354,458

9. REINSURERS’ SHARE OF OUTSTANDING CLAIMS, NET
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims comprise net amounts due from the following:
SAR’000
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
Impairment provision

2016

2015

2,104,267

1,829,059

(1,522)

(1,150)

2,102,745

1,827,909

Substantially all of the amounts due from reinsurers are expected to be received within twelve months of the date of the statement of
financial position. Reinsurers share of outstanding claims are calculated in proportion to the related risk distribution pattern. Reinsurance
arrangements are made with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor’s ratings methodology and ratings as
per other reputable agencies.
Amounts due from reinsurers relating to claims already paid by the Company are included in receivables, net (Note 10).
10. RECEIVABLES, NET
Receivables comprise net amounts due from the following:
SAR’000

2016

2015

1,890,619

1,399,860

Brokers and agents

318,076

293,446

Related parties (Note 25)

165,494

197,714

2,374,189

1,891,020

Receivables from reinsurers

32,489

202,269

Administrative service plan

24,070

18,436

Policyholders

2,430,748

2,111,725

Provision for doubtful receivables

(103,760)

(168,146)

Receivables, net

2,326,988

1,943,579
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Movement in provision for doubtful debts during the year was as follows:
SAR’000

2016

2015

Balance, January 1

168,146

102,383

(Reversal) / charge for the year (Note 22)

(61,208)

65,763

Write-offs
Balance, December 31

(3,178)

-

103,760

168,146

As at December 31, the ageing of receivables is as follows:

Past due but not impaired
Total

SAR’000

Neither past
Less than 30
due nor
days
impaired

31 - 60 days

Past due and impaired

61 - 90 days 91 - 180 days

181 - 360
days

More than
360 days

2016

2,430,748

1,411,972

391,701

358,901

71,025

76,629

28,110

92,410

2015

2,111,725

1,365,621

355,094

144,751

21,050

78,176

29,130

117,903

The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivables are monitored on
an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debts.
Receivables comprise a large number of customers mainly within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and reinsurance companies mainly outside
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Receivables include an amount of SAR 51 million (2015: SAR 23 million) due in foreign currencies, mainly in
US dollars. The Company’s terms of business require amounts to be paid within 30 to 90 days of the date of the transaction. Arrangements
with reinsurers normally require settlement within a certain agreed period.
The five largest customers accounts for 34% (31 December 2015: 25%) of the premiums receivable as at 31 December 2016.

11. STATUTORY DEPOSIT
In compliance with Article 58 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations of SAMA, the Company had deposited 10% percent of its share
capital, amounting to SAR 100 million in a bank designated by SAMA. The statutory deposit is maintained with the National Commercial
Bank and can be withdrawn only with the consent of SAMA.
12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
i)

Insurance operations:

SAR’000

2016

2015

Murabaha deposits

411,000

182,621

Banks balances and cash

968,402

579,247

1,379,402

761,868

2016

2015

Murabaha deposits

905,150

16,067

Banks balances and cash

116,597

45,746

1,021,747

61,813

ii) Shareholders Operations:
SAR’000
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Murabaha deposits are maintained with financial institutions and have a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
These earn commission at an average rate of %3.2 per annum as at 31 December %1.8 :2015) 2016 per annum).
Bank balances and cash under insurance operations includes call account balance of SAR 483 million (2015: SAR nil). Both bank balances
and murabaha deposits (including off-balance sheet exposures) are placed with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard
and Poor’s and Moody’s ratings methodology.
13. INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ SURPLUS AND DIVIDENDS DECLARED
Insurance Operations’ surplus
The insurance operations’ invests its surplus funds in investments as disclosed in Notes 6 ,5 and 12. Changes in the fair value of availablefor-sale investments at December 2016 ,31 are not considered as part of the net surplus available for distribution to policyholders. At the
time such investments are sold or gains and losses are realized, they will be included in the statement of income - insurance operations
and accumulated surplus.
Dividends declared
On February 2017 ,15, corresponding to Jumadah Al-Awwal 1438 ,18 the Company’s Board of Directors proposed to pay cash
dividend for the year ended December 2016 ,31 of SAR 5 per share amounting to SAR 500 million (2015: SAR 100 million)
to its shareholders.
Further on February 15,2017, corresponding to Jumada Al-Awal 1438 ,18H the Company’s Board of Directors proposed a
bonus issue of 25 million shares of SAR 10 each, amounting to SAR 250 million (2015: nil) to its shareholders.
The proposed dividend will be put to the shareholders for their approval in the General Assembly meeting.
14. CLAIMS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
SAR’000

2016

Payables to policyholders

679,713

656,252

Payable - General Authority of Zakat and Tax

336,377

339,055

Accrued expenses

112,417

139,880

Marketing representative commissions

108,640

123,113

Manafeth share of profit distribution payable

106,674

49,087

Employee end of service benefits

98,677

81,349

Provision for leave encashment

12,613

15,934

Employees’ savings plan

9,605

11,749

35,827

24,540

1,500,543

1,440,959

Other liabilities

2015

15. RESERVE FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The reserve for discontinued operations comprise the following in relation to one of the Company’s divisions which was discontinued
during 1998:
SAR’000
Outstanding claims
Reserve for losses
Total

2016

2015

1,425

3,203

196

8,008

1,621

11,211
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16. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE
The following reflects the cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and incurred but not reported for each successive
accident year at each statement of financial position date, together with the cumulative payments to date. The development of insurance
liabilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate value of the claims.
The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future claims
experience and developments.
Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.

2016

SAR’000
2011
Earlier

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

At the end of accident year

18,719,531

2,971,986

4,917,107

3,669,909

4,862,126

4,996,477

One year later

18,746,068

3,978,907

5,596,818

4,120,395

5,580,212

Two years later

18,717,890

4,016,792

5,522,532

4,149,345

Three years later

18,526,306

4,021,777

5,508,628

Four years later

18,500,906

4,025,411

Five years later

18,488,430

Accident Year

Total

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

Current estimate of cumulative claims

18,488,430

4,149,345

5,580,212

Cumulative payments to date

(18,309,955) (3,995,338) (5,387,195)

(3,890,033)

(4,660,503) (4,251,287)

(40,494,311)

Liability recognized in statement of
financial position

178,475

259,312

919,709

2,254,192

4,025,411

30,073

5,508,628

121,433

4,996,477

745,190

42,748,503

Salvage and subrogation

(123,100)

Incurred but not reported claims

1,446,728

Outstanding claims and reserves

3,577,820

2015
Accident Year

SAR’000
2010
Earlier

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015
4,862,126

Total

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At the end of accident year
One year later

15,976,733

2,521,919

2,971,986

4,917,107

3,669,909

16,197,612

2,914,308

3,978,907

5,596,818

4,120,395

5,522,532

Two years later

15,831,760

2,896,367

4,016,792

Three years later

15,821,523

2,910,080

4,021,777

Four years later

15,616,226

2,908,120

Five years later

15,592,786

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date
Liability recognized in statement of
financial position
Salvage and subrogation

15,592,786

2,908,120

4,021,777

5,522,532

(15,412,355)

(2,857,827)

(3,967,181)

(5,350,381)

180,431

50,293

54,596

172,151

4,120,395

4,862,126

37,027,736

(3,832,149) (3,746,886)

(35,166,779)

288,246

1,115,240

1,860,957
(88,643)

Incurred but not reported claims

1,410,053

Outstanding claims and reserves

3,182,367
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17. ZAKAT
The current year’s provision is based on the following:
SAR’000

2016

2015

Share capital

1,000,000

1,000,000

Reserves, opening provisions and other adjustments

1,598,458

1,007,026

Book value of long term assets

(703,074)

(1,025,674)

Zakatable income for the year
Zakat base

1,895,384

981,352

831,374

773,636

2,726,758

1,754,988

68,169

43,875

Zakat due at 2.5%

As the zakat base for the year is higher than the zakatable income, the zakat for the year is calculated at 2.5% on the zakat base for the
year.
The movement in the zakat provision for the year was as follows:
SAR’000

2016

2015

Balance, January 1

152,106

124,626

Provided during the year

68,169

43,875

Payments during the year

(19,832)

(16,395)

Balance, December 31

200,443

152,106

Status of Assessments
The Company had filed Zakat returns with the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT”) for the years from 2005 to 2015. In relation
to 2005 and 2006, the final assessments had been finalized and the Company had filed an appeal against the assessments of GAZT
which is raised to Board of Grievances. In relation to 2007 to 2013, GAZT had raised assessments and management had subsequently
filed their response. Further, GAZT has yet to commence its review for the years 2014 and 2015. Based on advice from zakat consultant,
appropriate provisions have been made and management believes that finalization of the above mentioned assessments is not expected
to have a material impact on the financial statements.
18. SHARE CAPITAL
The authorized, issued and paid up capital of the Company is SAR 1 billion at December 31, 2016 (2015: SAR 1 billion) consisting of 100 million shares
of SAR 10 each.
2016
SAR’000

Authorized and issued
No. of Shares

Held by the public

Paid up

SAR’000

53,370,407

533,704

SAR’000
533,704

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

237,901

237,901

General Organization for Social Insurance

22,839,445

228,395

228,395

100,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

2015
SAR’000

Authorized and issued
No. of Shares

Held by the public

53,370,407

Paid up

SAR’000
533,704

SAR’000
533,704

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

237,901

237,901

General Organization for Social Insurance

22,839,445

228,395

228,395

100,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
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19. LEGAL RESERVE
In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and in compliance with Article 70(2)(g) of the Insurance Implementing
Regulations issued by SAMA, the Company is required to allocate 20% of its net income for the year to the legal reserve until it equals
the value of share capital, which was reached in 2016. This transfer is only made at the year end. The legal reserve is not available for
distribution to Shareholders until liquidation of the Company.
20. MANAFETH SHARED AGREEMENT
On 13 January 2015 together with 25 related insurance companies, the Company signed the Manafeth shared agreement relating to third
party liability motor insurance which is effective from 1 January 2015. The agreement relates to motor insurance for vehicles entering
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The main terms of the above mentioned agreement are as follows:
••

The Company obtains 15% management fee of the net result of the Manafeth portfolio;

••

The Company obtains 4.25% of Manafeth’s gross premiums written to cover the related indirect expenses; and

••

The net result of the Manafeth portfolio after deducting the two above mentioned items is due to be shared equally by the Company and its related insurers.

21. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET
Insurance Operations
SAR’000

2016

2015

Available-for-sale:
- Dividend income
- Commission income
- Realized gain on sale (Note 30)

4,813

4,906

19,254

6,459

118,399

76,521

(1,397)

(4,018)

(526)

4,383

140,543

88,251

- Dividend income

23,219

5,088

- Commission income

50,291

2,557

(79)

2,910

- Realized gain on sale (Note 30)

43,191

171,890

- Investment fees

(2,138)

(2,059)

114,484

180,386

SAR’000

2016

2015

Salaries and benefits

364,046

335,516

- Investment fees
Share of profit from investment in associate (Note 5)
Investment income, net
Shareholders Operations
Available-for-sale:

- Foreign currency exchange (loss) / gain

Investment income, net

22. OPERATING AND SELLING EXPENSES

Advertising

15,124

17,603

Insurance, utilities and maintenance

10,788

11,602

6,240

5,118

Rent
Depreciation

5,373

6,629

Communications

3,788

3,390

Office supplies and printing

762

1,174

Training and education

619

4,911

(61,208)

65,763

11,828

9,984

357,360

461,690

(Reversal) / provision for doubtful receivables (Note 10)
Others
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23. OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
SAR’000

2016

Professional fees

16,237

2015
19.236

Depreciation

12,316

7.309

Insurance, utilities and maintenance

10,666

8.995

Indirect cost charge of Manafeth

10,015

8.302

License and other charges

8,716

12.795

Communications

6,150

7.623

Rent

1,874

1.873

Office supplies and printing

1,414

2.286

Training and education
Others

978

7.486

9,826

6.997

78,192

82.902

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 by 100 million
shares.
25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and companies of which they are
principal owners and any other entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these
transactions are approved by the Company’s management and Board of Directors.
The following are the details of the major related party transactions during the year and the related balances at December 31:

Amount of transactions for the year ended

SAR’000

2016

2015

Balance receivable / (payable) as at

2016

2015

Major shareholders
Amount of claims paid to hospitals owned by major shareholders

69,133

62,286

5,488

(4,259)

Medical insurance premiums written

33,351

39,996

1,985

3,277

41,500

792

22,328

-

Associates
Insurance premium written
Rent expenses paid

1,662

1,852

-

-

Najm fees paid

31,199

41,291

20,980

4,252

Waseel fees paid

12,780

14,589

(1,115)

-

8,436

8,490

1,223

3,663

504,682

250,366

141,181

194,437

8,056

8,119

(5,125)

(2,068)

United Insurance Co. fees and claims, net
Entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by related parties.
Insurance premiums written
Reinsurance transactions (Chedid Reinsurance)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is entitled each year to remuneration up to 10% of the
remaining profit from shareholders’ operations, as defined, based on a decision by the General Assembly.
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Remuneration and compensation of BOD Members and Top Executives
The following table shows the annual salaries, remuneration and allowances obtained by the Board members and five top executives for the
year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

SAR’000

BOD members
(Executives)

BOD members
(Non-Executive)

Top Executives including the CEO and CFO

2016

Salaries and compensation

-

-

6,180

Allowances

-

762

2,858

Motivational plans

-

-

88

Annual remuneration

-

1,800

3,382

End of service indemnities

-

-

597

Total

-

2,562

13,105

Salaries and compensation

-

-

5,397

Allowances

-

744

1,889

Motivational plans

-

-

365

Annual remuneration

-

1,794

3,250

End of service indemnities

-

-

1,843

Total

-

2,538

12,744

2015

26. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most
advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The fair values of recognised financial instruments are not significantly
different from the carrying values included in the financial statements. The estimated fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted
market prices, when available.
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
Level 1: quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted unadjusted prices for identical instruments in active markets.
Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are
based on observable market data.
Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
The table below presents the available-for-sale investments based on the fair value hierarchy:
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Level 1

(SR’000)

Level 2

Level 3

Total

2016

Available-for- sale investments
- Insurance operations

402,628

-

2,752,958

3,155,586

- Shareholders operations

58,065

-

1,319,926

1,377,991

460,693

-

4,072,884

4,533,577

- Insurance operations

582,916

-

2,637,526

3,220,442

- Shareholders operations

246,636

-

1,932,287

2,178,923

829,552

-

4,569,813

5,399,365

Total
2015

Available-for- sale investments

Total

The valuation of each publicly traded investment is based upon the closing market price of that stock as of the valuation date, less a discount
if the security is restricted. Fair values of private equity investments classified in Level 3 are determined based on the investees’ latest reported
net assets values as at the date of statement of financial position, which approximate the fair values. Fair values of other investments (including
sukuks) classified in Level 3 are determined based on discounted cash flows, which incorporate assumptions regarding an appropriate credit
spread. There were no transfers in between levels during the year ended December 31, 2016.
Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorized within level 3 of the faire value hierarchy.
Total gain or loss recognized in
Balance
January 1

Purchases

Sales

Profit or loss

Other
comprehensive
income

Balance
December 31

December 31, 2016

Insurance operations

2,637,526

2,559,857

(2,633,588)

(147,304)

336,467

2,752,958

Shareholders

1,932,287

4,663,536

(5,286,641)

(60,131)

70,875

1,319,926

4,569,813

7,223,393

(7,920,229)

(207,435)

407,342

4,072,884

Insurance operations

2,409,577

3,522,262

(3,240,593)

21,940

(75,660)

2,637,526

Shareholders

1,761,990

2,451,459

(2,146,146)

56,539

(191,555)

1,932,287

Total

4,171,567

5,973,721

(5,386,739)

78,479

(267,215)

4,569,813

Total
December 31, 2015

Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 investments
An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in pricing of investments would result in a change in the loss or gain for the year of SAR 40.73 million
(2015: SAR 45.70 million).
27. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process; operating segments have been approved by management in respect of the Company’s
activities, assets and liabilities. Information disclosed in the note is based on current reporting to the chief operating decision maker. Operating
segments do not include shareholders’ operations of the Company.
Segment assets do not include insurance operations’ property and equipment, prepayments and other assets, receivables, net and cash and cash
equivalents. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated assets. Segment liabilities do not include reserve for discontinued operations, surplus
distribution payable, due to shareholders’ operations, reinsurance balances payable, claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities and
fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated liabilities.
These unallocated assets and liabilities (including the related charges for provision for doubtful debts on premiums receivable and depreciation
on the property and equipments) are not reported to chief operating decision maker under related segments and are monitored on a centralized
basis.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

Operating Segments

Medical

SR’000

Motor

Manafeth

Property &
casualty

-

-

Total

Gross premiums written:
Compulsory

4,421,272

Non - compulsory
Total gross premiums written

-

-

809,815

-

-

-

-

5,231,087

1,512,411

235,643

1,075,994

8,055,135

Net premiums written

5,195,999

1,512,411

235,643

129,396

7,073,449

Net premiums earned

4,992,831

1,475,708

233,578

138,503

6,840,620

Reinsurance commissions

6,355

31

-

96,680

103,066

(3,996,114)

(1,019,049)

(43,557)

(45,578)

(5,104,298)

Policy acquisition costs

(257,442)

(173,389)

(35,975)

(50,092)

(516,898)

Excess of loss expenses

-

(18,059)

(3,248)

(8,560)

(29,867)

565

-

-

-

565

(98,458)

(7,781)

(20,756)

(6,345)

(133,340)

647,737

257,461

130,042

124,608

1,159,848

Net claims incurred

Changes in reserve for takaful activities
Other underwriting expenses
Income from Insurance operations
General, administrative, operating and selling expenses

(435,552)

Investment income, net

140,543

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

(50,036)

Other income, net

58,386

Manafeth insurance share distribution

(106,674)

Surplus from Insurance operations

766,515

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Operating Segments
SR’000

Medical

Property &
casualty

Manafeth

Motor

Total

Gross premiums written:
Compulsory

4,111,028

-

-

-

-

801,778

-

-

-

-

Total gross premiums written

4,912,806

1,294,864

195,352

1,142,246

7,545,268

Net premiums written

4,798,758

1,294,864

195,352

132,478

6,421,452

Net premiums earned

4,287,836

1,080,815

157,550

138,624

5,664,825

Non - compulsory

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred
Policy acquisition costs
Excess of loss expenses
Changes in reserve for takaful activities
Other underwriting expenses
Income from Insurance Operations
General, administrative, operating and
selling expenses

194

(4,391)

-

97,820

93,623

(3,313,344)

(751,661)

(53,818)

(25,087)

(4,143,910)

(225,775)

(141,696)

(24,129)

(44,988)

(436,588)
(24,427)

-

(12,612)

(2,330)

(9,485)

2,873

-

-

-

2,873

(103,657)

(14,075)

(9,986)

(18,634)

(146,352)

648,127

156,380

67,287

138,250

1,010,044
(544,592)

Investment income, net
Impairment on available-for-sale
investments
Other income, net

88,251
(17,696)

Manafeth insurance share distribution

(49,087)

Surplus from Insurance Operations

532,806

45,886

Annual Report 2016
Notes to Financial Statements
84

As at December 31, 2016

Operating Segments
SR’000

Medical

Motor

Manafeth

Property &
casualty

Total

Assets - Insurance operations
Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums

6,204

22

-

547,587

553,813

Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims

3,553

18.843

3,213

2,077,136

2,102,745

117,411

77.369

1,831

21,489

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Investments (including investment property)

218,100
3,178,138

Receivables, net

2,326,988

Unallocated assets

1,960,604

Total assets

10,340,388

Liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations
Gross unearned premiums

2,980,156

720,978

39,867

649,228

4,390,229

894,254

398,883

30,657

2,254,026

3,577,820

4,657

6

-

49,776

54,439

12,902

-

-

-

12,902

Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Unearned commission income
Reserve for takaful activities
Unallocated liabilities and surplus

2,304,998

Total liabilities and surplus

10,340,388

As at December 31, 2015

Operating Segments
SR’000

Medical

Property &
casualty

Manafeth

Motor

Total

Assets - Insurance operations
Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums
Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs

89,377

11,329

-

529,268

629,974

24,377

25,025

-

1,778,507

1,827,909

120,725

64,964

1,600

21,955

209,244

Investments (including investment
property)

3,243,905

Receivables, net

1,943,579

Unallocated assets

1,624,110

Total assets

9,478,721

Liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations
Gross unearned premiums
Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Unearned commission income
Reserve for takaful activities

2.860.161

695.582

37.802

640.016

4.233.561

930.415

287.895

24.542

1.939.515

3.182.367

6.241

24

-

44.759

51.024

13.467

-

-

-

13.467

Unallocated liabilities and surplus

1.998.302

Total liabilities and surplus

9.478.721
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Insurance risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of
any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the
carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid being greater
than originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a more diversified
portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by change in any subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The
variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use
of reinsurance arrangements.
Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on treaty and facultative basis with retention limits varying by product lines.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying
policy benefits and are presented in the statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.
Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit
exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such
reinsurance arrangements.
Frequency and severity of claims
The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and economical,
atmospheric disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages these risk through the measures described above.
The Company has limited its exposure to catastrophic and riot events by use of reinsurance arrangements.
Concentration of insurance risk
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in medical segment.
The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For flood or
earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. For fire and property risk a particular building and neighboring buildings,
which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered
in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration
of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels
acceptable to the Company.
Since the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia, hence, all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.
Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments
The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether
reported or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of
amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions
about several factors involving varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from
management’s estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to
claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and
government legislation affect the estimates.
In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the statement of financial position
date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the statement of financial position date.
Process used to decide on assumptions
The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral reasonable
estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely
outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis
with due regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case
estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.
The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already
notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. The estimation process takes into account the
past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.
The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserve and premium
deficiency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on
the unexpired policies as at the statement of financial position date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions
based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.
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Sensitivity analysis
The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate. However, these
amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial statements. The insurance
claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as
legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.
However, the sensitivity to changes in claim reserves net of reinsurance by 10% percent is analysed separately for each class of business
while keeping all other assumptions constant.

SAR’000)
Impact of change in claim reserves by + / - 10%

Surplus from insurance
operations before zakat
2016

2015

Shareholders’ equity
2016

2015

Medical

89,070

90,604

86,843

88,339

Motor and Manafeth

40,748

28,741

39,729

28,022

Property and casualty

17,689

16,101

17,247

15,698

147,507

135,446

143,819

132,059

(b) Reinsurance risk
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements
with other parties for reinsurance purposes.
To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers
and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance
Committee. The criteria may be summarized as follows:
-

Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent

-

Reputation of particular reinsurance companies

-

Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance of the reinsurers, wherever
applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements of the Company’s Board of Directors and
Reinsurance Committee before approving them for exchange of reinsurance business. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, there is no
significant concentration of reinsurance balances.
Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company remains
liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance
agreements.
(c) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market commission rates or the
market price of securities or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand for securities and
liquidity in the market.
The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the overall market risk exposure is maintained at prudent levels and is consistent with
the available capital. While the Board gives a strategic direction and goals, risk management function related to market risk is mainly the
responsibility of Investment Committee team. The team prepares forecasts showing the effects of various possible changes in market
conditions related to risk exposures. This risk is being mitigated through the proper selection of securities. Company maintains diversified
portfolio and performs regular monitoring of developments in related markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock and sukuk
market movements are monitored, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.
Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission rate risk and other price risk.
Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The currency exposures of available-for-sale investments are set out below:
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SAR’000

2016

2015

Saudi Arabian Riyals and GCC currencies

1,658,097

2,841,627

US Dollars

1,497,489

378,815

3,155,586

3,220,442

Saudi Arabian Riyals and GCC currencies

805,530

2,129,309

US Dollars

572,461

25,145

Insurance Operations

Shareholders Operations

Euros

-

6,161

Other currencies

-

18,308

1,377,991

2,178,923

The Company’s transactions are principally in Saudi Arabian Riyals and US Dollar. Management monitors the fluctuations in currency
exchange rates and acts accordingly and believes that the foreign currency risk is not significant.
Commission Rate Risk
The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk to the Company is the
risk of changes in commission rates reducing the overall return on its fixed commission rate bearing securities. The Commission rate risk
is limited by monitoring changes in commission rates and by investing in floating rate instruments.
An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest yields would result in a change in the loss or gain for the year of SAR 44.26 million
(2015: SAR 44.98 million).
The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at December 31 are as follows:
Insurance Operations
Less than 1 year

More than 1 year

Non-commission
bearing

2016

233,377

2,858,645

63,564

3,155,586

2015

376,299

2,253,541

590,602

3,220,442

2016

542.782

791,526

43,683

1,377,991

2015

650.000

1,217,714

311,209

2,178,923

SAR’000

Total

Shareholders
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Other Price Risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company’s investments amounting to SAR 107.25 million (2015: SAR 879.17 million) are susceptible to market price risk arising from
uncertainty about the future value of invested securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio and
by actively monitoring the developments in markets.
The impact of hypothetical change of a 10% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of investments on Company’s profit would be as
follows:

SAR’000)

Fair value change

Effect on Company’s profit

31 December 2016

+ / - 10%

+ / - 10,725

31 December 2015

+ / - 10%

+ / - 87,917

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. Accordingly, the sensitivity
analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company’s assets of future movements in the value of investments
held by the Company.
(d) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
loss. For all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure to the Company is the carrying value as
disclosed in the statement of financial position.
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the relevant components of the statement of financial position:
ASSETS - INSURANCE OPERATIONS
SAR’000

2016

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12)

1,379,402

2015
761,868

Receivables, net

2,326,988

1,943,579

Available-for-sale investments

3,155,586

3,220,442

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims, net

2,102,745

1,827,909

Total

8,964,721

7,753,798

2016

2015

ASSETS - SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
SAR’000
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12)

1,021,747

61,813

Available-for-sale investments

1,377,991

2,178,923

101,711

101,042

2,501,449

2,341,778

Statutory deposit (including accrued income)
Total

Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. Approximately 99% (2015: approximately 99%) of the Company’s
underwriting activities are carried out in Saudi Arabia. The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions
are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk. Also refer Note 10
for details.
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(e) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet obligations and commitments associated with
financial liabilities. The Company has a proper cash management system, where daily cash collections and payments are strictly monitored
and reconciled on regular basis. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities and
investing in liquid financial assets.
The table below summarizes the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted contractual obligations relating to financial liabilities:
Maturity Profile
LIABILITIES
INSURANCE OPERATIONS
2016
SAR’000
Reinsurers’ balances payable
Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Reserve for discontinued operations
Reserve for takaful activities
Claims payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities
Surplus distribution payable
Total

2015

Less than
one year

More than
one year

Less than
one year

More than
one year

177,828

-

177,828

502,579

-

502,579

3,577,820

-

3,577,820

3,182,367

-

3,182,367

1,621

-

1,621

11,211

-

11,211

12,902

-

12,902

13,467

-

13,467

1,401,866

98,677

1,500,543

1,359,610

81,349

1,440,959

76,651

-

76,651

100,176

-

100,176

5,248,688

98,677

5,347,365

5,169,410

81,349

5,250,759

Total

Total

LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
2016
SAR’000
Dividends payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total

2015

Less than
one year

More than
one year

Less than
one year

More than
one year

6,054

-

6,054

5,643

-

5,643

-

-

-

647

-

647

6,054

-

6,054

6,290

-

6,290

Total

Total

To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities mentioned above, the Company holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash
equivalents and investment securities for which there is an active market. These assets can be readily sold to meet liquidity requirements.
(f) Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology
and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at the Company’s service
providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s
activities.
The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with
achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

Annual Report 2016
Notes to Financial Statements
90

-

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

-

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

-

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

-

Documentation of controls and procedures;

-

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the
risks identified;

-

Ethical and business standards; and

-

Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

Senior Management ensures that the Company’s staff has adequate training and experience and fosters effective communication related
to operational risk management.

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’ capital
requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of
the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising paid share
capital, reserves and retained earnings
As per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 of the Implementing Insurance Regulations detailing the solvency margin required to
be maintained, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the following three methods as per SAMA
Implementing Regulations:
•

Minimum Capital Requirement of SAR 200 million

•

Premium Solvency Margin

•

Claims Solvency Margin

The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements.
30. REALIZED GAINS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET
INSURANCE OPERATIONS
SAR’000

2016

Realized gains on available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets

118,399

76,521

(50,036)

(17,696)

68,363

58,825

43,191

171,890

(22,034)

(36,032)

21,157

135,858

Realized gain on financial assets, net

2015

SHAREHOLDERS OPERATIONS
Realized gains on available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets
Realized gain on financial assets, net
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a) As at December 31, 2016, the Company was contingently liable for letters of credit and guarantees issued on its behalf by the banks,
amounting to SAR 175 million (December 31, 2015: SAR 163 million) occurring in the normal course of business.
b) The Company, in common with significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The
Company based on independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material impact on
the Company’s income or financial condition.
32. RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in the current year. These changes were made
for better presentation of balances and transactions in the financial statements of the Company.
33. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on Jumada Al-Awal 8, 1438H, corresponding to February 5, 2017.

